
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item No. AGENDA Page No

1.  MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS 

To receive any communications from the Mayor. 

2.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

4.  MINUTES 6 - 27

To authorise the signing of the minutes of the Annual Meeting of the 
Council held on 15th May 2018.  

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 

To receive petitions and questions from members of the public, where 
these have been received in accordance with the Petitions Scheme 
and/or Council Procedure Rules. 

6.  NOTICES OF MOTION 

The Council is asked to consider the following three Motions that have 
been submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10:

a) Appointment of Township Chairs
It will be moved by Councillor Dearnley and seconded by Councillor 
Sullivan that:

Meeting of:  Council
Date: Wednesday, 18th July, 2018
Time: 6.15 pm
Venue: Council Chamber - Rochdale Town Hall

Public Document Pack



“For many years, the Borough’s four Township Committees were able 
to appoint their own Chairs at the start of each Municipal Year. Whilst 
appreciating that this was contrary to the rules in the Council 
Constitution, it was in the spirit of devolution and was a practice that 
worked well for all Townships. 

I therefore move that Council formalises this devolved arrangement 
and delegates responsibility for the appointment of Township 
Committee Chairs to the Township Committees, at their first meetings 
of each future Municipal Year; and that the Constitution be amended to 
reflect this”

b) Northern Rail
It will be moved by Councillor Emsley and seconded by Councillor 
Burke that:

“The travelling public of Greater Manchester have had to put up with 
levels of inconvenience and disruption on the region’s railways way 
beyond what is acceptable.

Along with our MPs and the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, 
Rochdale Council has made it clear that it is unacceptable that our 
commuters are being treated like second class citizens.

The introduction of the emergency timetable, which is due to finish at 
the end of July, has stabilised things to some extent with less last 
minute cancellations, this is inevitable as there are less trains 
timetabled. 

This situation has been compounded by the continually postponed 
plan to electrify the line between Manchester and Leeds.

It is worth noting that Northern have not hit a performance target since 
2006. 

That is simply unacceptable. 

Therefore, I call upon the Council to continue, along with our MPs and 
the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, to exert pressure on 
Northern Rail and the Government, until we get not just a decent level 
of service but the level of service we were promised when the 
franchise was awarded.”

c) Tyred Campaign
It will be moved by Councillor Rowbotham and seconded by Councillor 
O’Rourke that:



“On Monday 10 September 2012 a coach bound for Liverpool carrying 
53 people from the Bestival music festival on the Isle of Wight, left the 
road and crashed into a tree instantly killing Michael Molloy (18), Kerry 
Ogden (23) and the coach driver, Colin Daulby (63), and left others 
with life-changing injuries. 

The inquest into the crash found that the front nearside tyre which was 
actually older than the coach itself, at 19 years, was responsible for the 
crash. In 2014, Liverpool City Council unanimously agreed on a motion 
in support of Michael’s mother Frances calling for a change in the law 
requiring a ban on tyres older than six years on commercial vehicles. 
Despite the widespread public and political support for this campaign, 
no change in the law has been made, shamefully leaving others at risk 
from faulty and dangerous tyres.

Council notes that Frances Molloy has launched “Tyred” – the official 
campaign to pressure Government – to change the law to ban the use 
of tyres older than ten years on commercial vehicles.

Council wholeheartedly supports “Tyred” and instructs the Leader of 
the Council to write to the Prime Minister and Leader of the Opposition 
to call together cross-party support for a change in the law.

Council further resolves to support the “Tyred” campaign until such a 
change in the law is achieved and to draw the attention of the Local 
Government Association, especially its Environment and Transport 
Board, to this Council’s view that the concerns should be fully 
addressed.

Finally, Council asks the Chief Executive to write to all schools in the 
Borough asking them to require coach and bus operators they use for 
school trips etc to adhere to the provisions set out in the Tyred 
campaign. Council should also ask officers to look at our own 
procurement procedures with a view to inserting an appropriate clause 
in any contracts with commercial operators and to also ensure that this 
standard applies to our own vehicle fleet.” 

7.  ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 28 - 29

The Council is required to consider and authorise an absence from 
attendance at meetings in accordance with the Local Government Act 



1972. 

8.  APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE TO ROLE OF 
ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER FOR HMR CCG 

30 - 32

The approval of Council is sought to amend the Chief Executive’s 
contract to allow additional contractual arrangements with National 
Health England/HMR Clinical Commissioners Group to facilitate the 
integration of certain Council and HMR CCG functions as previously 
agreed by the Cabinet in July 2017. 

9.  MEMBERS' QUARTERLY REPORTS 

To receive quarterly reports from Members of the Cabinet, Chairs of 
Township Committees and Chairs of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees and to permit questions from Members of the Council.  

(a)  The Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member for 
Finance

33 - 35

(b)  The Cabinet Member for Corporate and Resources 36 - 38

(c)  The Cabinet Member for Environment 39 - 42

(d)  The Cabinet Member for Planning, Development and Housing 43 - 46

(e)  The Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Business and Skills 47 - 50

(f)  The Cabinet Member for Children's Services 51 - 53

(g)  The Cabinet Member for Adult Care 54 - 55

(h)  The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Community and 
Culture

56 - 62

(i)  The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing 63 - 67

(j)  The Chair of Heywood Township Committee 68 - 71

(k)  The Chair of Middleton Township Committee 72 - 76

(l)  The Chair of Pennines Township Committee 77 - 78

(m)  The Chair of Rochdale Township Committee 79 - 80

(n)  The Chair of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 81 - 82

(o)  The Chair of the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

83 - 84

(p)  The Chair of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

85 - 86

(q)  Report of a Representative to Transport for Greater 87 - 89



Manchester

10.  GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY 90 - 125

Minutes of the meetings of the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority held 27th April 2018 and 25th May 2018. 

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
Peter Thompson
Governance and Committee Services, 
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 15 May 2018

PRESENT:  His Worshipful the Mayor (Mr Ian Duckworth), Councillors Ali 
Ahmed, Iftikhar Ahmed, Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Sultan Ali, Bamford, 
Beswick, Cecile Biant, Blundell, Boriss, Brett, Brosnan, Burke, Cocks, Dale, 
Davidson, Dearnley, Dutton, Neil Emmott, Susan Emmott, Emsley, Hartley, 
Heakin, Holly, Hornby, Hussain, Joinson, Kelly, Malcolm, Martin, McCarthy, 
Meredith, Nolan, O'Neill, O'Rourke, Paolucci, Rana, Rashid, Rowbotham, 
Rush, Sheerin, Angela Smith, Susan Smith, Stott, Sullivan, Taylor, Wazir, 
West, Williams, Winkler, Zaheer and Zaman

OFFICERS:  Steve Rumbelow (Chief Executive), Gail Hopper (Director of 
Children’s Services), Mark Widdup (Director of Neighbourhoods), David 
Wilcock (Assistant Director – Legal, Governance and Workforce), Elaine 
Newsome (Head of Governance), Danny Brierley, Mark Roberts and Luke 
Settle (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and Alison James (Resources 
Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  8 members of the public

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Farnell, Councillor James Gartside, 
Councillor Howard, Councillor Mir, Councillor Nickson, Councillor Robinson, 
Councillor Wardle and Councillor Williams

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
1 There were no declarations of interest.

ELECTION OF MAYOR
2 Councillor Brett moved and Councillor Dearnley seconded the election 
of Councillor Mohammed Zaman as Mayor for the 2018/2019 Municipal Year.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor Mohammed Zaman be elected as Mayor for the 2018/2019 
Municipal Year.

DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE
3 Councillor Mohammed Zaman signed the Declaration of Office and 
took the Chair.

(The Mayor, Councillor Zaman, in the Chair)

APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY MAYOR
4 Councillor Heakin moved and Councillor O’Neill seconded the election 
of Councillor Billy Sheerin as Deputy Mayor for the 2018/2019 Municipal Year.

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



RESOLVED:

That Councillor Billy Sheerin be elected as Deputy Mayor for the 2018/2019 
Municipal Year.

MINUTES
5 The Council considered the minutes of the Council meeting held on 
11th April 2018.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Council meeting held on 11th April 2018 be approved 
as a correct record and signed by the Mayor.

CABINET PORTFOLIOS AND RESPONSIBILITES 2018/19
6 The Council considered the report of the Leader which set out a 
number of changes which the Leader had made to Cabinet Portfolios.

It also notified Council of the Leaders appointment of Cabinet Members and 
Assistants to portfolio holders for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Leaders’ appointments to Cabinet positions, the allocation of
portfolios to Cabinet Members and the appointment of Assistants to
Portfolio holders as detailed in the table below be noted:-

Portfolio Cabinet Member 
(Portfolio Holder)

Assistant to Portfolio 
Holder

Finance Leader of the Council, 
Councillor Allen Brett

Councillor Faisal Rana

Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member 
Planning, Development 
and Housing

Councillor Daalat Ali Councillor Linda 
Robinson

Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Health & Wellbeing

Councillor Sara 
Rowbotham

Councillor Wendy 
Cocks

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Business, 
Skills and Employment

Councillor John Blundell Councillor Aasim 
Rashid

Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods, 
Community and Culture

Councillor Janet Emsley Councillor Shakil 
Ahmed

Cabinet Member for 
Environment

Councillor Neil Emmott Councillor Ali Ahmed

Cabinet Member for 
Children’s Services

Councillor Kieran 
Heakin

Councillor Susan Smith

Page 7



Cabinet Member for 
Adult Care

Councillor Iftikhar 
Ahmed

Councillor Billy Sheerin

Cabinet Member for 
Resources

Councillor Liam 
O’Rourke

Councillor John Hartley

2. That the Leader re-affirms the joint arrangements and delegation of
executive functions to individual cabinet members, Township Committees and 
Officers as set out in Part 3 (Scheme of Delegation) of
the Council’s Constitution.

APPOINTMENT OF SHADOW PORTFOLIO HOLDERS 2018/19
7 Council considered a report setting out the nominations for the 
opposition
portfolio spokespersons for the 2018/2019 Municipal Year.

RESOLVED:

That approval be given to the nominations to the Shadow Portfolio
Spokespersons for the 2018/2019 Municipal Year as follows:

Portfolio Shadow Portfolio Spokesperson
Finance Councillor Mike Holly
Resources Councillor James Gartside
Planning, Development and Housing Councillor Rina Paolucci
Regeneration, Business Skills and Councillor Angela Smith
Employment
Neighbourhoods, Community and Culture Councillor John Taylor
Environment Councillor Peter Winkler
Children’s Services Councillor Pat Sullivan
Adult Care Councillor Jane Howard
Health & Wellbeing Councillor Ann Stott

COUNCIL APPOINTMENTS 2018/19
8 Council considered a report which outlined nominations to Committees 
and
the appointment of Chairs and Vice Chairs for the 2018/2019 Municipal Year.

RESOLVED:

1.  That approval be given to the appointment of the following Council 
Committees, including the Chairs and Vice Chairs and substitutes:-

Heywood Township to be comprised of all Members from the following 
Wards:

 North Heywood
 West Heywood
 Hopwood Hall

Chair: Councillor Peter Rush
Vice Chair: to be appointed at the first meeting of the Township Committee

Page 8



Middleton Township to be comprised of all of the Members from the 
following Wards:

 East Middleton
 North Middleton
 South Middleton
 West Middleton
 Hopwood Hall

Chair: Councillor Donna Williams
Vice Chair: to be appointed at the first meeting of the Township Committee

Pennines Township to be comprised of all of the Members from the following 
Wards:

 Littleborough Lakeside
 Milnrow and Newhey
 Wardle and West Littleborough
 Smallbridge and Firgrove

Chair: Councillor Amna Mir
Vice Chair: to be appointed at the first meeting of the Township Committee

Rochdale Township to be comprised of all of the Members from the following 
wards

 Balderstone and Kirkholt
 Bamford
 Castleton
 Central Rochdale
 Healey
 Kingsway
 Milkstone and Deeplish
 Norden
 Spotland and Falinge

Chair: Councillor Sultan Ali
Vice Chair: to be appointed at the first meeting of the Township Committee

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Conservative (2) 

Councillor Stott Councillor Winkler

Labour (8)

Councillor Beswick Councillor Meredith
Councillor Burke Councillor Robinson
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor West

Page 9



Councillor Hartley Councillor Peter Williams

Liberal Democrat (1)

Councillor Kelly

Chair (Labour) – Councillor Meredith
Vice Chair (Conservative) – Councillor Stott

Health, Schools and Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Conservative (2) 

Councillor Sullivan Councillor Gartside

Labour (8) 

Liberal Democrat (1)

Non-Elected Voting Members (voting rights in relation to education 
decisions only): 

Church Representatives (two vacancies) 
Parent Governor Representatives (two vacancies)
Chair (Labour) – Councillor Dutton
Vice Chair (Conservative) – Councillor Sullivan

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Conservative (2) 

Councillor Holly Councillor Angela Smith

Labour (8) 

Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor Mir
Councillor Boriss Councillor Nolan
Councillor Farnell Councillor O’Neill
Councillor Joinson Councillor Donna Williams

Councillor Biant Councillor Dutton
Councillor Brosnan Councillor Hornby
Councillor Cocks Councillor McCarthy
Councillor Dale Councillor Smith

Councillor Davidson

Page 10



Liberal Democrats (1)

Councillor Bamford

Chair (Conservative) – Councillor Mike Holly
Vice Chair (Labour) – Councillor Shaun O’Neill

Audit and Governance Committee

9 elected Members

Conservative (1)  

Councillor Gartside

Labour (8) 

Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor Nickson
Councillor Dale Councillor Rana
Councillor Malcolm Councillor Rashid
Councillor Martin Councillor Wazir

Independent Persons (non-voting) (in respect of Elected Member 
conduct issues):  

Mr. A Underdown and Ms. A Taylor

Chair – Councillor Peter Malcolm
Vice Chair – Councillor Aasim Rashid 

Planning and Licensing Committee
 
Conservative (2) 

Councillor Howard Councillor Taylor

Labour (12): 

Councillor Shakil Ahmed Councillor Rashid
Councillor Burke Councillor Rush
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Wardle
Councillor Aftab Hussain Councillor Donna Williams 
Councillor Meredith Councillor Wazir
Councillor O’Neill Councillor Zaheer

Liberal Democrats (1)

Councillor Davidson

Page 11



Chair – Councillor Wardle
Vice Chair – Councillor Aasim Rashid

Licensing Sub-Committee

Comprises three Members drawn from the full membership of the Planning 
and Licensing Committee to be appointed as the meeting is required to meet.  
Chair to be appointed at the meeting of the Sub-Committee.
 
Charitable Trustee Committee

Conservative (1)  

Councillor Holly

Labour (4)

Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor O’Neill
Councillor Nickson Councillor Sameena Zaheer

Chair – Councillor O’Neill
Vice Chair – to be appointed at the first meeting

Health and Wellbeing Board

 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Health/Public Health
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Children’s Services
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Adult Care
 Leader of the Conservative Group
 Chief Executive
 the Director of Adult Social Services for the local authority
 the Director of Children's Services for the local authority
 the Director of Public Health for the local authority
 a representative of the local Healthwatch organisation for the Borough
 a representative of each relevant Clinical Commissioning 
 such other persons, or representatives of such other persons, as the 

Board or the local authority after consulting the Board thinks 
appropriate
o CVS
o GMP (from Safer Communities Partnership)
o GMFRS

Statutory requirement – at least one elected member; the Directors of Adult 
Social Services, Children's Services and Public Health for the local authority; 
at least one representative of the Clinical Commissioning Group (currently Dr 
Chris Duffy; Simon Wootton and Dr Bodrum Alam); representative of 
Healthwatch (currently Jane Jackson); and (for certain business) 
representative of NHS England. 

Page 12



Integrated Commissioning Board 

(Sub-Committee of the Health and Wellbeing Board)
To note the Council membership – 
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Health/Public Health
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Children’s Services
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Adult Care
 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Finance

Officers to attend
 the Director of Adult Care 
 the Director of Children's Services 
 the Director of Public Health 
 the Director of Resources
 the Chief Executive

The balance of the Board membership appointed by the Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

Substitute Members 2018/2019

Conservative 

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (2)

Councillor Taylor Councillor Howard

Health, Children and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee (2)

Councillor Paolucci Councillor Angela Smith

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (2)

Councillor Winkler Councillor Sullivan

Charitable Trustee Committee (1) 

Councillor Dearnley

Labour 

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (3)

Councillor Amna Mir Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Ali Ahmed

Health, Children and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee (3)

Page 13



Councillor Kath Nickson Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Councillor Cecile Biant

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (3)

Councillor Aftab Hussain Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Carole Wardle

Charitable Trustee Committee (3) 

Councillor Sheerin Councillor Rush
Councillor Hornby

Liberal Democrat

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Councillor Bamford

Health, Schools and Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Kelly

Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Davidson

2. That approval be given to the following appointments to other council 
bodies:-

Voluntary Sector Partnership

Party Leaders Councillor Emsley
Substitute Councillor Heakin

Corporate Parenting Board

 Cabinet Member for Children’s Services (Chair)
 Cabinet Member for Adult Care
 Cabinet Member for Housing
 Opposition Spokesperson for Children, Schools and Families
 Assistant to the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services
 Representative to the Fostering Panel (Councillor Hornby)

Borough Regeneration Steering Group – to be disbanded – information 
through Townships and relevant Scrutiny Committee

Page 14



Democratic Structures Working Group 

Councillors Daalat Ali, Brett, Neil Emmott, Rowbotham, Martin, O’Rourke, 
Paolucci

Social Services Complaints Review Panel: 

Cabinet Members for Health, Social Care and Children’s Services

Adoption Panel 

Councillor Heakin 

Conservative tbc

Fostering Panel 

Councillor Hornby

3. That approval be given to the following appointments to Joint Committees:-

Joint Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute Hospitals Trust

Councillor Dutton Councillor Stott
Councillor Robinson

Substitutes
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor Gartside

Joint Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Care (Mental Health) Trust

Councillor Dale Councillor Susan Smith
Councillor Howard

       
Substitutes
Councillor Nickson Councillor Dearnley

Joint Committee for Strategic Procurement 

Councillor O’Rourke

Substitute 

Councillor Daalat Ali

4. That approval be given to the following appointments outside bodies:-

Page 15



Local Government Association – Leader and Deputy Leaders, Councillor 
Dearnley

Rochdale Development Agency – Councillor Blundell, Councillor Dearnley 
and the Chief Executive

Healey Dell Joint Management Committee – Councillors Heakin, O’Neil and 
Wazir

East Lancashire Railway Trust - Councillor Sheerin and two further 
appointments by the Heywood Township Committee

Heritage Trust – North West – Councillor Emsley

Ring & Ride Steering Group – Councillor Cocks

Rochdale Town Centre Management Company – Councillor Daalat Ali, 
Councillor John Taylor and the Chair of the Rochdale Township Committee

Groundwork Trust for Rochdale and Oldham - Councillors West and 
Brosnan

Rochdale Shopmobility Executive Committee – Councillor Cocks and 
Councillor Gartside

North West Regional Association of Education Authorities – Councillor 
Heakin

University of Salford Court – Councillor Heakin

DVAW Inter-Agency Working Party – Councillor Robinson

North West Local Authorities Employers Organisation – Councillor 
O’Rourke and Councillor Hartley 

Rochdale Community Legal Service Partnership – Councillor West and 
Councillor Gartside

Reserve Forces and Cadets Association – Councillor Emsley

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Board Representative Committee - 
Councillors Cocks, Daalat Ali, Linda Robinson, Susan Emmott

Board of the Leisure Trust (Link4Life) - Councillors Rush, Zaheer and 
Paolucci-Escobar

Rochdale Chamber of Commerce Local Council – Councillor Cocks

Rochdale Borough Multi-Agency Racial Harassment Forum – Councillor 
Shakil Ahmed

Page 16



The Joint Committee of England and Wales for the Civil Enforcement of 
Parking and Traffic Regulations – Councillor Neil Emmott

Pennines Prospects Board – Councillor Hartley

Greater Manchester Forest Partnership – Councillor Rashid

Calder Valley Development Group – Councillor Hartley

Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – relevant Portfolio Holder, 
Assistant to the Cabinet Member and opposition Portfolio Holders (Councillor 
Taylor) to serve on the Partnership

Children & Young People’s Partnership - Relevant Portfolio Holder, 
Assistants to the Cabinet Member and opposition Portfolio Holders (Councillor 
Sullivan to serve on the Partnership.

Rochdale Housing Initiative – Cabinet Member with responsibility for 
Housing and Environment (Councillor Daalat Ali)

5. That the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the relevant Group Leader, 
be authorised to make and confirm any amendments or additions in relation to
the above appointments.

6. That approval be given to the following  appointments or nominations to
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) bodies for the 2018/2019
Municipal Year and that the Leader of the Council, in consultation with the 
respective Group Leader where minority group appointments or nominations 
are required, be granted delegated authority to appoint or nominate to GMCA 
or AGMA bodies which may arise throughout the 2018/19 Municipal Year:-

Page 17



GMCA & AGMA Nominations and Appointments - Local Authority 2018/2019

GMCA Nominations and Appointments 2017/18

Body Nominations 
Required

Length of 
Term

Meeting 
requirements

Notes To be completed by 
Democratic Services 

Managers - LA 
Information

GM Combined 
Authority 

10 members - 1  
to be appointed 
by  each  LA

Plus 1 
substitute 
member from 
each LA

Plus GM Mayor

1 year Monthly Councillor Brett

Substitute 

Councillor Rowbotham

P
age 18



Transport for 
Greater 
Manchester 
Committee

33 members 
from across GM 
appointed by 
the LA – *See 
Notes

May – June 
2018 – re-
constitution of  
TfGMC to be 
considered at 
the June 
Annual 
meeting

Monthly

Plus sub-
committee 
meetings as 
required

To include transport 
portfolio holder from 
each district

Bolton – 3 reps

Bury – 2 reps

Manchester – 5 reps

Oldham – 3 reps

Rochdale – 3 reps

Salford – 3 reps

Stockport – 4 reps

Tameside – 3 reps

Trafford – 3 reps

Wigan – 4 reps

(population based)

LA Political balance 

Councillors Burke

Neil Emmott

Sullivan

P
age 19



rules apply

Health & Social 
Care 
Partnership 
Board

10 members – 1 
to be appointed 
be each LA 

Plus 1 
substitute from 
each LA

Bi Monthly Councillor Rowbotham

Substitute 

Councillor Cocks

GMCA & AGMA 
Scrutiny 
Committees 

Each district is 
asked to make 6 
nominations – 
*See Notes

Monthly 4 of these 
nominations should 
be from the ruling 
group and 2 from the 
major opposition 
group, except where 
there is a hung 
council (or no 
opposition group). 
Districts with a three 
way hung council are 
expected to be 

Councillors Dutton

Meredith

Linda Robinson

Peter Malcolm,

Mike Holly

Ann Stott

P
age 20



politically inclusive in 
their nominations.

GMCA Audit 
Committee

4  members 
invited from 
across GM 
nominated by 
the LAs, if they 
wish to do so, 
GMCA to make 
the appointment

1 year Quarterly Cannot be Leaders

GM Political Balance 
rules apply

Plus 1 or 2 
Independent persons

Nominate Councillor 
Peter Malcolm

Waste Disposal 
committee

2 nominations 
from each 
district 9 with 
the exception of 
Wigan)

From 2 July 
2018

The Committee will 
have between 12-15 
members to ensure 
political proportionality 
and gender balance.

Size and the Chair of 

Councillors Susan 
Emmott, Aftab Hussain

P
age 21



the Committee to be 
agreed by the GMCA 
at the June Annual 
Meeting.

NW Regional 
Flood and 
Coastal 
Committee

3 members 
invited from 
across GM  
nominated by 
the LAs, if they 
wish to do so,  
to be appointed 
by the GMCA 

1 year Quarterly Those appointed to 
appoint their own 
deputies

Councillor Neil Emmott

P
age 22



AGMA Nominations and Appointments 2018/2019

Body Nominations 
Required

Length of 
Term

Meeting 
Requirements

Notes To Be Completed by 
Democratic Services 

Managers – LA 
Information

AGMA 
Executive 
Board

9 Leaders, 1 City 
Mayor of Salford, 
(plus GM Mayor) 
to be appointed 
by the LA

Plus 2 substitutes 
from each LA

1 year Monthly Councillor Allen Brett

Substitutes 

Councillors Daalat Ali 
and Sara Rowbotham

Police and 
Crime Panel

10 Members 
(cannot be 
Leaders) of GM 
Authorities to be 
appointed by the 

1 year Minimum 
requirement 
quarterly

Cannot be Leaders

Plus 2 Independent 

Councillor Janet 
Emsley

P
age 23



LA members 

GM Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

10 members 
invited from 
across GM to be 
appointed by the 
LA 

Plus one 
substitute from 
each LA, to be 
non-
Executive/Cabinet 
members from 
respective LA.

1 year Quarterly Chairs of Health 
Scrutiny or scrutiny 
members ideally ( 
must be non- 
Executive/Cabinet 
Members)

GM Political 
Balance rules apply

Councillor Ray Dutton

Substitute: Councillor 
Pat Sullivan

GM Reform 
Committee

10 members 
invited from 
across GM to be 
nominated by 
LAs and 
appointed by 

Members with 
responsibility for 
Public Service 
Reform

Councillor Liam 
O’Rourke

P
age 24



AGMA Executive 

Statutory 
Functions 
Committee

10 members 
invited from 
across GM  to be 
appointed by the 
LA

Plus 

one substitute 
from each LA

1 year Quarterly – 2 
hourly 
meetings

In previous years 
members have been 
drawn from LA Lead 
Executive members 

Janet Emsley

Substitute Daniel 
Meredith 

Planning and 
Housing 
Commission

10 members 
invited from 
across GM 
nominated by the 
LAs

1 year Quarterly Members to be 
drawn from LA 
Planning & Housing 
portfolio holders

Daalat Ali

P
age 25



AGMA Executive 
to agree final 
membership

GM Political 
Balance rules apply

Plus Leader 
portfolio holder for 
Planning & Housing

Linda Robinson

GM Pensions 
Fund 
Management 
Panel

10 members 
invited from 
across GM 
nominated by the 
LA 

AGMA Executive 
to agree final 
membership

1 year Quarterly 

Sub-groups 
may also 
require 
attendance 
(there are 
four)

In previous years 
members have been 
drawn from LA Lead 
Executive members

Shaun O’Neill

Peoples History 
Museum

1 member invited 
from  across GM 
nominated by the 
LAs, if they wish 

1 year Quarterly Charity Trustee role Nominate O’Rourke

P
age 26



to do so,  to be 
appointed by 

AGMA Executive

 

P
age 27



Report to Council

Date of Meeting MeetingDateLegal
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Elaine Newsome
Public/Private Document Public

Non-attendance at meetings

Executive Summary

1. Council is required to consider and authorise any absence from attendance at 
meetings in accordance with S85 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Where a member is unable to attend any meeting of the authority for a period 
of 6 consecutive months following the date of their last attendance, they 
automatically cease to be a member of the authority, unless Council has 
resolved to approve a reason for an extended absence.

Recommendation

2. That Council resolves, having regard to the circumstances of the absence of 
Councillor Carol Wardle from Council meetings, to waive the requirements of 
Section 85 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This is a matter for Full Council to determine.  

Key Points for Consideration

4. S85 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that “if a member of a 
local authority fails throughout a period of six consecutive months from the 
date of his last attendance to attend any meeting of the authority, he shall, 
unless the failure was due to some reason approved by the authority before 
the expiry of that period, cease to be a member of that authority”.  For the 
purposes of the legislation, ‘meetings of the authority’ includes Committee and 
Sub-Committee meetings.

Members will be aware that Councillor Wardle has recently experienced a 
period of ill health and on-going recovery prevents her from undertaking 
normal duties.  Councillor Wardle’s last attendance at a meeting of the 

Page 28

Agenda Item 7



authority was at Planning and Licensing Committee on 22nd March 2018.  

Without a resolution of the Council under S85 (1) of the 1972 Act, Councillor 
Wardle must attend any meeting of the authority prior to the 21st September 
2018. 

Council can only consider a reason to waive the requirements of the 1972 Act 
prior to the end of the 6 month period.  This cannot be approved 
retrospectively. Whilst there remain a number of opportunities for Councillor 
Wardle to resume her duties prior to the end of the six month period, this will 
be the last opportunity for Council to consider an exemption to the attendance 
requirements.

Under the circumstances, it is requested that Council approve an extension of 
the 6 month rule for Councillor Wardle, to afford an additional recovery period, 
should it be required.

4.1 Alternatives considered

Council could resolve not to approve the reason for absence and waive the 
requirements of the 1972 Act.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no budget implications associated with this report

Risk and Policy Implications

Should any councillor lose office, through failure to attend for the six month 
period, the disqualification cannot be overcome by the councillor 
subsequently resuming attendance nor can retrospective approval of the 
Council be sought for an extension in time. If the Council decided not to 
approve an extension, and Councillor Wardle was unable to attend a meeting 
within the remainder of the 6 month period, a casual vacancy would arise.

6.

Consultation

7. n/a

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Records of attendance at 
meetings

www.rochdale.gov.uk

For Further Information Contact: Elaine Newsome,  
Elaine.Newsome@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 29



Report to Council

Date of Meeting 18th July 2018
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Rosemary Barker
Public/Private Document Public

Appointment of Chief Executive to role of Accountable Officer for 
HMR CCG

Executive Summary

1. This report seeks the approval of Council to amend Council’s Chief 
Executive’s contract to allow additional contractual arrangements with National 
Health England/HMR Clinical Commissioners Group to facilitate the integration 
of certain Council & CCG functions as agreed by Cabinet in July 2017.

The approach recommended involves a separate contract for the Accountable 
Officer role for a fixed term basis and is proposed to maximise the opportunity 
for the borough whilst minimising the risk for all parties in accordance with 
legal requirements                    

Recommendation

2. That Council approves the undertaking by its Chief Executive of the additional 
role of Accountable Officer HMR CCG (Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale 
Clinical Commissioning Group) for a fixed term period until 31st March 2020

Reason for Recommendation

3. Council is required to approve changes to the contractual arrangements of the 
Chief Executive and appointment to the Accountable Officer role constitutes 
such a change.   

Key Points for Consideration

4. This recommendation is made in the context of the progress towards a single 
management function for the Council and HMR CCG (in line with the approval 
by Cabinet on 25th July 2017) that the Chief Executive of the Council become 
the Accountable Officer of the CCG within a twelve month period. 

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



Since the GM Memorandum of Understanding on Health and Social Care in 
2015, proposals have been adopted by both the Council and HMR CCG to 
progress towards Integrated Commissioning. From 1st April 2018 the 
Integrated Commissioning Board has been established (following a year in 
shadow form) with delegated accountability for the pooled budget for Health, 
Social Care and Public Health for Rochdale Borough. 
 
GM Health and Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) awarded Transformation 
Fund monies (circa £25m) to Rochdale on the basis that a single placed 
based commissioning function and a full pooled budget for adults and public 
health would be created as well as a Local Care Organisation formed.

To enable this, the CCG and the Council have been merging structures with 
the plan to retain only one Accountable Officer for health and care. The joint 
Director of Commissioning took over the DASS role as a progression of the 
single commissioning function.

Despite these joint arrangements, the CCG and the Council retain their 
statutory functions and there is a requirement that the Accountable Officer 
holds an NHS contract. Council approval is required to allow the Chief 
Executive to enter into an additional contract. The contract is a separate 
contract from the contract that exists between the Chief Executive and the 
Council. (This contract remains unaffected). Council is required to approve the 
Chief Executive taking on  additional duties..       

The new contract is a fixed term contract until 31st March 2020 which mirrors 
the timescales of the GM Devolution agreement. The arrangement will need to 
be reviewed at this stage.

In the wider GM context there is a move towards Single Accountable Officers 
and a number of Local Authority Chief Executives have taken up the additional 
role of Accountable Officer.  

This recommendation is made in the considered belief that through 
undertaking the additional role the effect on the Council and the Borough of 
Rochdale will be positive and that the additional responsibility will not detract 
from the Chief Executive’s focus on the needs of the Council.   

Alternatives Considered
Other models have been considered but the option adopted has been done so 
on the basis of legal advice, practical considerations and a balance of the 
potential risks.  

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no financial implications arising from these new arrangements for 

Page 31



the Council. 

Risk and Policy Implications

The risk of not giving approval enabling the Chief Executive to undertake this 
role is that the role is pivotal to the successful development of Integrated 
Commissioning in Rochdale. Not appointing the single Accountable Officer 
would threaten the basis on which Transformation monies have been 
awarded.

The fixed term arrangement gives all parties the opportunity to review how 
the arrangements are working in line with the context at the time both 
nationally and locally and make decisions as to the future direction 
accordingly.      

6.

Consultation

7. Locality Plan consultation and engagement has taken place since 2015 with 
the public and staff across Health and Care organisations in the Rochdale 
Borough   

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Rosemary Barker, , 
rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 32



Page 1 of 3

ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL & CABINET MEMBER FOR 
FINANCE TO THE 

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18th JULY 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest developments on 
various matters relating to the FINANCE Portfolio

1. INTRODUCTION

I still consider myself relatively new as council leader, but months into the role the 
Cabinet and senior officers are working well together.  They have been supportive in a 
couple of campaigns I’m undertaking this year: encouraging staff, when possible, to use 
the stairs and smoking cessation. I’m working with our excellent public health officers to 
come up with exciting ideas to positively promote both. 

There are a few other things I wanted to mention before my full report: the £100,000 
Community Grant that’s been passed down from the Combined Authority to us to 
administer; a Metrolink extension and the new work being done at Petrus.  

The grant is to support local voluntary, charitable and Community Safety groups to 
deliver effective approaches to preventing and tackling crime and antisocial behaviour 
across the borough.  Following a positive meeting with Transport for Greater 
Manchester our campaign to link Middleton with the rest of the Metrolink is gaining 
momentum.  And I am pleased to be able to find some funding for Petrus, to support 
their bike repair and maintenance project. Their enthusiasm and commitment during my 
recent visit was very impressive.

2. FINANCE SERVICES

a) Finance

Outturn 17/18 and Monitoring 18/19: An outturn position for 2017/18 was presented to 
Cabinet on 29th May.  An in-year saving of £3.6m on the revenue budget was reported 
demonstrating effective financial management in Directorates. The collection fund 
surplus was £4.3m and there was £21m of Capital re-phasing mainly due to the 
opportunities around commercial investment. As at the end of May 2018, monitoring for 
the current year was presented to Cabinet on the 26th June. This report identified 
£0.733m pressures to which there were requests for budget pressure funding whilst the 
service is looking to mitigate the remaining pressures. The collection fund is forecast to 
have an underspend of £3.3m, mainly due to saving from the previous year.

Health and Social Care Integration: The shadow pooled fund outturn report was 
presented to the Integrated Commissioning Board on the 29th May 2018, reporting an 
overspend of £3.4m, the Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group each funding 
their respective overspend. A formal pooled fund has been established for 2018/19 with 
a net budget requirement of £336.8m. As at the end of May 2018, monitoring being 
reported to ICB on the 26th June with a current pressure of £3.2m.

Budget  2018/19 and 2019/20:  The 2018/19 budget was presented to Budget Council Page 33

Agenda Item 9a



Page 2 of 3

on the 28th February, setting a balanced budget with a net requirement of £204m.The 
budget guidelines, timetable and public engagement plan for 2019/20 was presented to 
Cabinet on the 26th June.

2017/18 Statutory Accounts: The financial year end for 2017/18 was 31st March 
2018. Our External Auditors Grant Thornton commenced the audit of the statutory 
accounts in June and they consider both the accuracy and standards of the accounts 
alongside making an assessment regarding the financial resilience and value for 
money.  

b) Revenues and Benefits

19.4% of council tax due in the year has been collected so far which is slightly behind 
the amount collected this time last year; £1m of previous year arrears has also been 
collected. 

I am pleased to report that Rochdale has retained 1st place in business rate collection in 
GM for 2017/18. 19.1% of business rates due in the year has been collected so far 
which is ahead of this time last year; £204k of previous year arrears has also been 
collected. 

We are currently focusing on reducing waiting times for claims for Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Support, which are at around 3½ weeks, but improving. Processing of Blue 
Badges remains up to date. Our Discretionary Housing Payment funding for 2018/19 is 
£669,657. Since April we have made 471 awards, with a value of £310,343. Our aim is 
to use all the available funds.  

c) Internal Audit

Quarter 1 Report 2018/19: A report is due to be presented to the Audit and 
Governance Committee on 17 September 2018. All reports issued in the quarter had 
either substantial or adequate assurance opinions with the exception of one audit 
relating to IT Disaster Recovery arrangements which concluded that we could provide 
only limited assurance that key risks are being managed effectively. However an action 
plan has been agreed by management to address all the issues raised by 31 March 
2019 with various actions planned to be completed in the intervening period.

Counter fraud: 

 173 fraud referrals were received with 85% resulting in positive outcomes;
 A further 10 sanctions have been achieved, consisting of 9 fines for fraud and 1 

formal caution; and
  £58,744 has been identified in terms of additional savings and overpayments 

which will be recovered.

2 COMMUNICATIONS 

a) Website
The Council has again secured a four-star Better Connected rating for the council’s 
website. Rochdale’s website is in the top 10% of highest performing council websites in 
the country and Rochdale is one of only 9 councils across the country that has achieved 
4 stars across the past 3 consecutive years.   We are the only council in the North West 
of England that has achieved the top rating in the past five years. 

b) Rochdale Town Centre
Page 34



Page 3 of 3

The Communications team has received immense positive feedback from across the 
country for a social media exercise outlining the huge amount of work the Council has 
done to improve Rochdale Town Centre.  Well done to the team on both counts

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of the Council 
about these or any other matter.

Councillor Allen Brett
Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Finance

Page 35



Page 1 of 3

ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE AND RESOURCES TO 
THE 

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18th JULY 2018
 

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest developments on 
various matters relating to the Corporate and Resources Portfolio

1 INTRODUCTION

I have truly enjoyed the opportunities that this portfolio presents and getting up to speed 
with all that it contains has proved to be a challenging but fulfilling task. My portfolio 
contains what would be described as “back office” but those who work under it work 
tirelessly to make sure our frontline services are delivered as effectively as possible.

Previously the Leader thanked staff for their determination and hard work in the snowy 
conditions. How times have changed! Despite the rising temperatures staff have 
continued to work hard for residents in the borough and deliver results.

2 INFORMATION, CUSTOMERS & COMMNUNITIES

a) Customer Access
Members may recall that earlier this year the Council was a finalist in the Local 
Government Chronicle Awards. I’m delighted to say that on 27th June, the Council was 
winner of the Digital Transformation Award at the 2018 Municipal Journal Awards. The 
judges said that the Council ‘has successfully used technology to improve the lives of 
residents, while also delivering impressive cost savings and increased revenue’. I’d like 
to thank our fantastic staff and partners who contributed to this great achievement.

Our award-winning website has received a 4 star rating from Better Connected which 
means that we are in the top 10% performing council websites in the country. I would 
encourage residents and members to make use of our website as their first port of call to 
access Council services and information.

b) Public Service Reform
Our Integrated Place Teams have been working in neighbourhoods to reduce costs and 
help families and individuals with the most need. They comprise of a core team, including 
Council staff, the Police and Housing colleagues and a draw team of specialists.  The 
teams have been delivering cashable cost savings to the council and the public sector 
system, through their work in Kirkholt, College Bank and Lower Falinge. Independent 
analysis has proven that in Lower Falinge and College Bank, for every £1 spent, £4.13 of 
savings has been delivered in cashable savings.  Non cashable savings are as much as 
£34.50 per £1 invested. Work will now be beginning in Heywood.

The work of the Integrated Place Teams in Rochdale has been described as “leading 
edge innovation delivering powerful results” in an independent report.

I had the pleasure of attending seminars on community wealth building put on by the 
Centre for Local Economic Strategies (CLES). The community wealth building initiative 
aims to create local economies that invest in the development of people and place and 
not just on inward investment.

Page 36

Agenda Item 9b



Page 2 of 3

c) Policy and Performance

The Council is a lead member of the Co-operative Councils Innovation Network and we 
have been promoting how co-ops and co-operative working makes a difference to 
people’s lives at the recent Co-operatives fortnight. 

As the birthplace of Co-operation, we recognise the importance that working together 
differently with our residents and community brings and we took the opportunity to 
reinforce our many community initiatives such as In Bloom. Members will know of our 
commitment to social value in how we procure and spend locally and how we support 
skills, maximise employment, promote involvement in the local community and promote 
environmental sustainability.

d) ICT
Work is now fully complete on the Council’s new internet pipe and migration of our Wider 
Area Network. This will mean that our public buildings are better connected and that our 
internet speed will be 10 times faster than previously, improving usage for library users, 
customers and colleagues.

3 HUMAN RESOURCES

a) National Pay Award 2018-20
Following the pay bargaining process between the National Employers and recognised 
Trade Unions (who place reliance on local work between staff and trade union reps) the 
pay award for 2018/19 has been implemented from 1st April. The national pay award was 
‘bottom loaded’ and included an increase to £8.50 per hour for the lowest paid but we in 
any case already pay £8.75 per hour in line with the Rowntree Foundation Living wage. 
The pay award for employees above Spinal Column point 20 was 2%. As the award is a 
two year deal the 2nd year’s award (2019/20) incorporates an increase to £9.00 per hour 
from 1st April 2019 with a further 2% on pay rates. However it also involves a review of 
the pay spine recognising that the current arrangements are not fit for purpose going 
forward with eroding differentials. Officers are working up the detail of the implications of 
this for Rochdale.

4 GOVERNANCE

a) Civics Team
I’d like to welcome the Civics team who have recently become part of the service, 
transferring from the Neighbourhoods Directorate.  They will continue to provide 
comprehensive support to the Mayoral office.

b) Elections
Those members who were in attendance at recent Township meetings will know that they 
are conducting a review of polling district, places and stations.  I’d encourage Members 
to feedback their views on the current arrangements and any suggested alternatives.  In 
addition, the team led a series of activities for Local Democracy week which took place 
recently.  It was a pleasure to receive so many young people into the Town Hall and 
gauge their understanding of government and democracy.  Thank you to those members 
who were able to offer their time in support of this.

c) School Admission Appeals

To date 405 appeals have been received and processed with 143 appeals having been 
heard in the last 3 weeks. Page 37



Page 3 of 3

d) Paperless Meetings

For those Members who haven’t yet had the opportunity, I’d encourage them to book in 
with the Committee Team for a demonstration of the new ICT equipment which will help 
us move toward paperless committee meetings.  This initiative will deliver vital savings if 
fully embraced with no adverse consequences for members of the public.

Councillor Liam O’Rourke
Portfolio Holder for Corporate and Resources

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of the Council 
about these or any other matter.

Page 38



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT TO THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18th JULY 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Environment Portfolio.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
 Judging is complete for Green Flag Awards for parks and cemeteries. 8 sites that 

gained the award last year have been judged plus two new sites put forward this year: 
Denehurst Park in Rochdale and Middleton Memorial Gardens

 Preparations under way for Britain In Bloom regional judging throughout July and for 
the first time ever we have been nominated to represent the North West in the National 
Competition for Rochdale Township, 9th August judging date.  

 Routes will have an extra deep clean, existing floral schemes upgraded and new floral 
schemes installed. 

 Newest floral scheme is a pop-up show garden on Gracie Island in Rochdale Town 
Centre, with a WW1 commemoration theme, in partnership with Rochdale in Bloom 
group and Marshall’s (Sponsor). The garden will stay until after Remembrance Sunday 
and then move to its final location.  This will free up the space for a new pop up garden 
on Gracie island with a new theme each year

Operations
 Continuing press releases covering Rochdale In Bloom with wildflower planting, the 

Wonderwall, judging dates announcements and the pop up display by the town hall.
Waste Collection and Recycling
 Recycling rates continue to increase for the fourth year in succession currently at 51% 

RBC have one of the highest food waste yields alongside the lowest recyclate   
contamination rates in Greater Manchester. This demonstrates that our on-going 
engagement and education programme is proving very successful. 

 The Recycle during Ramadan campaign saw recycling officers engaged with over 400 
people in 1:2:1 conversations at Mosques across the borough and led to messages 
surrounding food waste recycling being mentioned in prayer services and Social media 
posts averaged two thousand views per post. 

 Our Schools engagement programme has seen 50 recycling lessons delivered so far 
across 30 schools. 

Enforcement
Quarter one of the year has seen the following enforcement actions:-
Number of fixed penalties issued    63  94% for littering
Cautions issued (active & paid)  12
Fly Tipping events  1814 38% rise on the same dates 2017
Untidy Gardens/Land events  266 27% rise on the same dates 2017
Abandoned Vehicles  95 10% rise on the same dates 2017
Dog Fouling Events          80 5% Fall on the same dates 2017
Traveller Events  4 85% fall on the same dates 2017

 The traveller injunction has reduced the number of incidents and related costs 
significantly and seems to be a great success. 

 Work continues on the cemeteries development programme with 3 main objectives to 
delivering in 2018/2019. These are :-

• Strategic review of all bereavement services including future burial provision  
• Deliver the planned further extension to Middleton Cemetery
• Complete the review of the toilet and washroom facilities at Denehurst Park

Page 39

Agenda Item 9c



PROPERTY, HIGHWAYS & FACILITIES MANAGEMENT
Property – Technical
 Progressing with the delivery of the 2018/19 School Capital Schemes coupled with the 

delivery of the AMG Programme for 2018/19 including works to Community Centres
 Progressing with the schools condition surveys and looking at the implementation of 

carrying out additional condition surveys to the Councils Portfolio of Public Buildings, 
carparks and land we own.

 Currently refurbishing a changing room at Firgrove.
 Also working on some direct commissions from schools i.e. Alkrington CP School -

Nursery Alterations.
N1R
 A new booking system for the training and conference suite will go live in early July 

2018. This will allow us to provide reports on room usage, cancellations, no shows and 
income generation and support marketing to generate external income.

 Additional external storage to the rear of N1R  has  been approved which will facilitate 
the storage of the new flood barriers and provide additional storage for the building

Managed Property Services
 The team continues to deliver a reactive repair service to all Council properties and 

Schools. The team is also preparing to undertake a number of larger planned schemes 
over the school summer holidays:
 Fixed wiring inspections
 Woodlands Primary School – Conversion of Library into a Bathroom area
 Adaptation works, including grab / hand rails, ramps
 Broadfield Park – Footpath improvements

Capital Projects
 14 projects for the Schools Capital Maintenance Programme for 2018/19 with a 

combined value of £2.25m have been tendered ready to commence work in the 
summer holidays.  

 Additional place planning schemes at St. Andrew’s CE and Boarshaw Primary Schools 
are on site, providing 5 extra classrooms for the start of the new school year..

HIGHWAYS
Capital Programme & Delivery
 The 2-year LTP schemes are agreed and works have started on site at Spring Vale, 

Middleton on the 11th June. 
 Year 1 of the programme is 62 schemes at a value of £1m and will be complete 

October 2018. 
 The sites for the additional Highway Investment Programme where approved at the 

June Townships and the programme will be fully finalised by mid July 2018. 
 Enabling work has already commenced to ensure best use of the summer weather.  
 The finalised programme will be circulated to members and a communications package 

will be produced to inform residents of the scale and scope of these works and the 
positive effects they will have on the Boroughs roads

Bridges, Structures and Asset Management
 Ashworth Road Landslide Repairs has been on site for six weeks and work is 

progressing well. 
 A new Bridge Inspection Policy Document will record our inspection procedures. 

Currently we inspect 377 highway structures over a cyclic 2-year period. 
Highways Maintenance 
In partnership with BBLP we have:

 Cleaned 14,982 gullies and attended to 466 reported blocked gullies
 Undertaken or scheduled 2,543 minor highway repairs
 Inspected approximately 226 utility companies excavations on our highway
 Received and responded to 497 service requests from the public and 61 from 

elected members
 Attended 135 out of hours emergencies & 144 emergency road repairs
 Inspected 212km of highway for defects.

Page 40



Winter Maintenance
 Following the end of the 2017/18 winter period, we have started to restock the salt to 

our pre-season level of 4500t. 
 The gritting fleet is to have a service over the summer and everything in place for the 

start of the 2018/19 winter season. 
 Rochdale are currently leading on an AGMA wide procurement exercise to provide a 

weather forecaster for the 2018/21 winter seasons which will improve forecast accuracy 
and help to make the service even more efficient. 

Network Improvement, Developing and Flooding
 The Lincoln Close link road is now open, providing a route for road users and 

pedestrians from Oldham Road to Rochdale Railway Station. The team continue to 
monitor available funding bids coming through the GM Mayor’s Challenge Fund. The 
last two phases of delivering the Cycle City Ambition Grant 2 funded schemes 
continues with TfGM.

Car Parking
 The parking team are currently recruiting new members of back office staff to help 

reduce the number of parking appeals that are currently outstanding, the team have 
worked hard to reduce this already with further improvements for service delivery 
expected. 

STREET LIGHTING
 Continue to monitor the performance of EON so they provide a high quality service.  
 We will be using LED lanterns that align with the PFI contract that will further reduce 

RBC energy consumption and CO 2 emissions. 
 The routine maintenance for 2018 is currently 60 % complete and on schedule. 
 EON has taken an average of 2.07 days to repair a streetlight, the average percentage 

of lights working was 99.31 % for this period.
FACILITIES MANAGEMENT
 The Mayor presented 10 junior schools with the GM healthy award certificate, in 

recognition of their hard work in fighting obesity by providing nutritionally balanced 
healthy school meals. FM now have 30 schools who have gained this prestigious 
award.

 The FM and School crossing patrol service held a job fair in June that was a great 
success. It has resulted in over 20 people living in the Borough now on a casual role list 
within the service.

Town Hall
 The stars of Coronation Street were filming in the town hall this June as part of the 

ongoing plot regarding child custody. The feedback was very positive, and even more 
so when the mayor brought in some samosas for the cast! 

CORONERS HOSTED SERVICE
 We have agreed to work collaboratively with the Pennine Acute Hospital Trust to 

embed a Bereavement Nurse within the coroner’s service, based at Heywood.  
 The Nurse will be in a position to provide early bereavement support to those 

vulnerable families who need it most.  This will be the first coronial service in the 
country to integrate a bereavement nurse provision.

REGISTRATION AND CELEBRANT SERVICES
 Our Registration and Celebrant Services has recently submitted its Annual 

Performance Report to the General Register Office, the assessment confirmed that we 
are a High Performing District.  

 The registration service is a small team based at the Town Hall and the assessment is 
a testament to their resilience, customer focused service delivery and dedication to 
providing a high quality service to Rochdale residents

Councillor Neil Emmott
Portfolio Holder for Environment
Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 

Page 41



the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Environment Portfolio.

Page 42



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT & 
STRATEGIC HOUSING TO THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18th 

JULY 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest developments 
on various matters relating to the Planning, Development & Strategic Housing Portfolio.

PLANNING

There are two updates in respect of the Planning and the Development Management 
service.  
Firstly, in terms of new developments and investment in the borough, the positive news 
is that there is a strong pipeline of major developments now at an advanced stage of 
discussions with the planning team.  These are likely to turn into planning applications 
over the next 3-6 months and so the team are anticipating a particularly busy 6-9-month 
period.  As part of these preliminary discussions, officers have been working to agree 
Planning Performance Agreements with developers to assist with timescales for decision 
making and to secure additional discretionary fee income for the service.

Secondly, you will all be aware of the vacancies in the Enforcement team following the 
retirement of two long-serving officers.  Unfortunately, our first attempts to recruit to the 
vacant post has proved unsuccessful and so officers are now reviewing options as to 
how to try and best recruit to the post.  In the meantime, new enforcement cases are 
being managed by a Senior Planning Officer.  A further update will be provided in due 
course but the service will clearly not be at full capacity whilst the recruitment process 
continues.  Any councillor enquiries regarding enforcement should in the first instance be 
directed to the following email address:  development.management@rochdale.gov.uk

Strategic Planning 

Officers have been continuing to focus on finalising the draft Site Allocations 
Development Plan Document.  The draft DPD follows the adoption of our Core Strategy 
in October 2016 and will identify the sites we need, within the urban area and including 
other committed sites, to provide new jobs and homes to 2028.  A report will be 
presented to Cabinet on 31st July 2018 for approval after which we hope to begin formal 
public consultation on the DPD.  Alongside that, officers are continuing to work with the 
Combined Authority on the next Greater Manchester Spatial Framework with 
consultation on the next stage due later this summer.  I will provide further updates on 
both these matters in due course. 
 
STRATEGIC ESTATES & ASSETS

Industrial Assets
As part of its continued investment strategy, the Council has completed the purchase of 
Southgate Industrial Estate, Heywood. The estate comprises 25 industrial units, built in 
the 1990s. A number of the units have been disposed of on long leases, but 12, 
comprising 30,000 sq ft and comprising units between 1,800 and 4,100 sq ft, remain 
income-producing. The current income is £158k per annum, providing a net initial yield 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9d

mailto:development.management@rochdale.gov.uk


of 7.38%, against the Council’s target of 6.5%.

Disposals
Members may have noticed the number of reports to the recent Township Committee 
cycle seeking approval for the release of sites for disposal. The service is aiming to bring 
50 sites to members for release for disposal before the end of the financial year, as part 
of the efforts to significantly increase the asset disposal programme.

Kirkholt Health Centre
Terms have now been approved by Cabinet for the development of a new health centre 
at Kirkholt.

Rochdale Old Fire Station
Terms have also been agreed and the funding approved for the Council’s acquisition of 
Rochdale Old Fire Station. The acquisition will secure a permanent and improved base 
for the fire service museum and, following refurbishment, additional office space.

DISCRETIONARY CRISIS FUND AND LOCAL WELFARE PROVISION

The DCF has supported 113 vulnerable residents in the first two months of this financial 
year, with 846 individual items totalling £40,000. 7% of items awarded were for 
emergency items such as fuel vouchers, emergency clothing, travel etc. and, 93% were 
for awards to support resettlement (white goods and essential household items).

UNIVERSAL CREDIT DATA

Full Service Universal Credit went live on May 16th this year, seeing ‘new claims’ and 
‘change of circumstances’ being moved over to Universal Credit. We worked with the 
DWP, holding several information sessions at Number 1 Riverside to raise awareness in 
the borough.

The total caseload of UC claims at the end of May 2018 was 2,882. The proportions of 
claimants are as follows;

• 27% Middleton, 18% Heywood, 55% Rochdale
• 25% aged 16 to 24, 64% aged 25 to 49, 11% aged 50 and over
• 65% not in employment, 35% in employment.

(Universal Credit data is gathered from Stat-Xplore (Official government Statistics 
website) and figures are subject to revision in subsequent releases.)

STRATEGIC HOUSING

Rochdale Strategic Housing Partnership
This partnership brings together the main housing association partners operating in the 
borough together with Strategic Housing and Rochdale Housing Initiative.  It is chaired 
by the Chief Executive of RBH.  It provides a forum for the Council’s housing partners to 
identify how they can individually and collectively help to deliver on identified priorities for 
the borough and specifically the Council’s housing priorities.   Over the past year a 
specific focus of work in the group has been around the links between housing and 
health and how housing can help alleviate pressures on the NHS in terms of hospital 
discharge whilst delivering a better service for people.  Some of the work piloted in 

Page 44



Rochdale has been highlighted nationally as best practice.  The partnership is currently 
reviewing how it works in the light of the Council’s new Housing Strategy statement to 
ensure that partnership working remains strong and focused in the right areas.

HOUSING
I am pleased to report there is strong market interest from a number of house builders 
who are keen to bring forward sites across the Borough and, in the last 12 months, we 
saw the completion of a greater number of new homes (801) than our Local Plan target 
of 590.  Progress is also being made to dispose of a number of Council owned sites for 
residential development.  Within Rochdale, we have exchanged legal contracts with 
Countryside Properties who, subject to final ground investigations, will be submitting 
planning applications by late Summer for four sites totalling around 240 new homes and 
subject to planning, these sites will be brought forward quickly.  We are continuing to see 
strong delivery and market interest in Langley and two further Council owned sites are 
being marketed for residential development.  

Housing Development 
The Strand – completion is now anticipated for July 2018. 
RBH’s phase 2 development at Lower Falinge which will provide 19 x 2 bedroom houses 
is scheduled to complete in late September 2018.  
RBH is also on site with a development of 25 x 2 & 3 bedroom homes for shared 
ownership at Hollin, Middleton.  
Plans for a phase 3 development at Lower Falinge and a scheme to develop new homes 
at Great Howarth, Smallbridge are also in development.
Willow Park, Langley – Keepmoat are making progress on site and the first phase of 
homes for sale are now being actively marketed. 
Ramsey Terrace - Regenda are on site building 10 x 4 bed, 2 x 3 bed family homes for 
affordable rent. Completion is anticipated for December 2018. Galliford Try are 
progressing well on site on the old Boots Warehouse in Heywood and completion is 
anticipated for November 2018. 
Discussions with developers and Registered Providers are ongoing regarding other 
development opportunities across the borough.

Empty Properties
11 properties have been brought back into use following intervention from the Empty 
Property Team this includes

 2 which have been refurbished and let through the repair and lease scheme.   
 15 referrals have been made for the repair and lease scheme.  
 1 application has been made to the residential property tribunal to apply for an 

Interim Empty Dwelling Management Order 
 2 Empty Dwelling Management Order Notices have been served.  
 Letters have been sent to 128 owners with the offer of advice and assistance.

Energy Efficiency
Under the LEAP (Local Energy Advice Programme) programme additional household 
visits over and above the 250 have been allocated, this currently stands at 272 with 
further visits anticipated. 
Under the Warm Homes Fund programme over half of the 400 household visits have 
been completed. More than half of the 40 first time central heating systems have been 
either installed or awaiting installation.

Private Rented Sector

Page 45



 81 tenant complaints received, 6 Improvement Notices and 1 Prohibition Order 
served. 

 22 cases of protection from illegal eviction and harassment complaints dealt with. 
 A landlord event was held in May which was well attended, providing both 

landlords and agents valuable information on the roll out of Universal Credit. 
 A number of HMO applications for both mandatory and additional licencing have 

been received which are currently in process. 
 Pro-active visits to premises are being carried out to uncover unlicensed HMO’s 

with a recent visit resulting in an Emergency Prohibition Order being served on 
the use of the 3rd floor of the premises. 

Partnership Enforcement 
The Partnership Enforcement team are a specialist multi-agency team dealing with the 
serious and complex issues that affect our borough. 

 55 multi-agency enforcement visits have been conducted this quarter resulting in 
the following enforcement work, Housing Standards, Overcrowding, Trading 
Standards, Counter Fraud, Food Hygiene, Vulnerability/Safeguarding and Social 
Tenancy Fraud. 

Homelessness
Since the beginning of April the Homelessness Reduction Act has come into effect and 
the statutory homelessness service is currently getting to grips with the new 
requirements. The good news for the borough so far is that unlike some areas there has 
not been an immediate large increase is households coming for assistance and this is 
largely down to the inclusive approach we already have in place; however, the increased 
requirements has been impacting upon waiting times and appointments. As a result, the 
council has committed extra resources through the Flexible Homelessness Prevent 
Grant to increase front line services. The pressures and demand for all types of housing 
has been steadily growing and this is the main area for concern.
The team have been under tremendous pressure recently but nevertheless have 
managed to keep up with their workload – work has been underway with Andy Burnham 
too on the Homeless Strategy for AGMA.
One local resident is retiring after 40 years work with Petrus and it is appropriate to note 
the hard work and effort across the years by one of our partners.

Gypsies and Travellers
From 1st January 2017 to 4th July 2017 there were 31 unauthorised encampments 
within the borough, lasting on average 6 days, with significant clear-up cost to the 
Council.  Over the same period this year there has been 6 unauthorised encampments, 
lasting on average 2 hours, and resulting in no clear-up cost to date.  In addition, 1 
family has been permitted to use the temporary stopping site provided by the council.

Councillor Daalat Ali
Portfolio Holder for Planning, Development and Housing

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of the 
Council about these or any other matter relating to the Planning, Development and 
Housing Portfolio

Page 46



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR REGENERATION, BUSINESS AND SKILLS TO 
THE 

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18th JULY 2018

Thank you Mr Mayor for the opportunity to report to the council the latest developments on 
various matters relating to the Regeneration (including Strategic Projects), Business and Skills 
Portfolio.

ROCHDALE TOWN CENTRE

Rochdale Riverside (Genr8)
The construction of our Rochdale Riverside retail & leisure scheme continues to make good 
progress.  The contractors Willmott Dixon have been busy on site carrying out piling and 
remediation works, and constructing the new access road.  We continue to work closely with 
Willmott Dixon to maximise the opportunities for local jobs and businesses.  Two former 
members of the Armed Forces, who are Rochdale residents, recently secured jobs on the site 
and a Rochdale company won a major contact to undertake the groundwork.   We recognise 
that the construction work will result in disruption to the roads and footpaths in the area and will 
continue to work closely with the contractor to ensure this is kept to a minimum.  The 
development is expected to be open in summer 2020.

Rochdale Town Hall & Town Hall Square 
I am delighted to confirm that our plans to transform the Town Hall have been given a major 
boost after the Heritage Lottery Fund approved the 1st stage of an £8.9m bid.  This award 
means we can now progress plans to restore and redevelop the Grade 1 listed building, which is 
one of the country's greatest heritage assets. Our plans to improve the Town Hall Square, 
including public realm improvements and the lighting of key heritage buildings are also being 
progressed.   Specialist landscape architects will be appointed later in 2018 to create some 
designs which will be put out to public consultation before work begins on site.
 
Drake Street & Heritage Action Zone
The Cooperative Connections Heritage Action Zone was launched by the Council, Historic 
England and other partners in May 2018. The first such partnership in Greater Manchester, the 
Heritage Action Zone brings investment and expertise from Historic England, which will help us 
stimulate the local economy by bringing historic buildings back in to use, improve our historic 
environment and increase interest in our heritage assets. Working with our partners at the 
Cooperative College, we have purchased the former Butterworths Jewellers, which will become 
a Cooperative Enterprise Hub, where the Cooperative College will work with young people to 
develop new businesses based on cooperative principles. The Heritage Action Zone is part of 
our commitment to strengthen the local Drake Street economy by supporting diversification of 
use, including assisting in the delivery of new residential and leisure uses.

Market 
The interim market on Baillie Street, Yorkshire Street and Lord Square continues to operate 
three days a week. We continue to make progress on the permanent market, next to the re-
opened River Roch. The fit out of the Santander building to create a small food hall is 
progressing and work is underway to create the new loading facilities.  The new market is 
expected to be operational in August 2018.   

Fire Service Museum 
We are working closely with the Greater Manchester Fire Service Museum Trust to bring 

Page 47

Agenda Item 9e



forward exciting proposals to transform the ground floor of the former fire station building and 
create a dedicated exhibition space for the museum’s many exhibits. A second stage Heritage 
Lottery Fund bid for £1.7m was successfully announced in June, which will also create a new 
café and education centre to support more school visits and paid posts will be created to help 
manage the museum, which is currently staffed by volunteers.  We have also started to review 
options for the use of the first floor.  

Town Centre Business Rates & Independent Retail Business Support Scheme
Our innovative Business Rates discount scheme and property renovation grants for independent 
businesses have made a huge impact to our town centres.   A number of new businesses have 
been awarded business rates and property renovation grants, and are now established across 
all three town centres, with 6 applications currently being assessed or awaiting further 
information from the applicant.

MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE

Middleton Townscape Heritage Initiative & Long Street Property Improvements
The £600,000 restoration of Long Street Methodist Schools will be complete in August 2018, 
providing new leisure and employment opportunities for Middleton and completing the 
Townscape Heritage Initiative programme, which has seen more than £3,000,000 invested in 
Middleton’s heritage by Council, Heritage Lottery Fund and property owners. A commercial 
property improvement scheme will be implemented in September, a partnership between 
property owners and the Council to improve the aesthetic appeal of the area, support existing 
businesses and encourage business growth.

GM CYCLING & WALKING FUND
Following the recent announcement of the GM Mayor’s Cycling and Walking Fund, we are 
working on projects across the Borough which can be put forward for this three year investment 
programme.  We are also looking at schemes which could be implemented quickly should there 
be an early opportunity to access this funding.  

BUSINESS PARKS 

Kingsway Business Park
Activity continues apace at Kingsway Business Park. Two industrial properties totalling 90,000 
sq ft were let to inward investors in April; a German-owned kitchen supplier and a French 
technology company. Both companies will create jobs over the next twelve months and they 
have been introduced to Employment Links Partnership.

Construction work has started on a scheme of 11 small light industrial units on Plot D ranging in 
size from 3,000 sq ft to 15,500 sq ft. These units will be ready for occupation in Spring 2019 and 
marketing activity has commenced to secure tenants for the scheme that will be owned by the 
council. 

A planning application for two buildings totalling 95,000 sq ft on Plot N has been submitted to 
the local planning authority. The proposed development will provide a new distribution hub for 
an expanding local company and an additional unit for a prospective tenant. The application is 
currently under consideration.    

Senior representatives from the procurement team at Heathrow Airport visited Kingsway in May. 
The business park has been included on a long list of sites in the UK that are being considered 
as a location for a Logistics Hub to be used to support the development of the third runway at 
Heathrow. Kingsway is one of eight locations under consideration for the project in the North 
West.

Page 48



Stakehill Industrial Estate
There has been some positive property news at Stakehill Industrial Estate over recent weeks. 
The largest vacant unit, the 300,000 sq ft former Tesco unit, has now been fully refurbished and 
is being actively marketed for future occupiers. A further 220,000 sq ft of space has been let to 
manufacturing and distribution companies including Carter Brothers, British Vita and Tool 
Station’s completion of fit-out. Development work continues on the proposed CCTV system, 
which is intended to be implemented later this year. 

OTHER REGENERATION ACTIVITY 

M62 J19/South Heywood Area Wide Improvement Programme
Members will recall that at their March meeting, the Planning and Licensing Committee were 
minded to grant planning permission for the South Heywood development subject to the 
Secretary of State not wishing to intervene. The Secretary of State has now confirmed that he 
does not wish to call-in this application. Subject to the conclusion of the section 106 Planning 
agreement, a decision notice will be issued in due course. Rochdale Council continue to work up 
the detailed design aspects for the construction of the road.   

Business

The RDA and Council have recently hosted a joint meeting with 4 of the major banks to discuss 
the start-up and growth advice available across the borough. This included a tour of the 
Council’s managed workspace at Globe House which is offering new hot desking facilities
Rochdale Development Agency continues to provide comprehensive business support through a 
single point of contact for both local companies and inward investors alongside the Business 
Growth Hub. The level of property enquiries in the first quarter is encouraging and the Business 
Team continues to work with a range of businesses that are looking to relocate and/or expand. 

The 2018 Business Awards were launched last month and have already attracted some new 
sponsors. The website is now open for entries with the Awards ceremony taking place in 
November at the Town Hall.

Work is progressing well on the development of the Business Improvement District for Rochdale 
Town Centre, the boundary for BID area agreed, budget planning workshops took place in June 
and the  notification of intent to hold ballot has been submitted to Secretary of State.  The ballot 
target date is 1st November 18.

The Council has approved 3 new empty shop grant approvals in May  - The Medicine Tap, 
Simpsons Furniture (Heywood)  and a new café next to the Regal Moon creating 25 jobs in 
total.   

A local innovative food business has been supported to expand, creating 20 new jobs over the 
next two years. A local textile business have been assisted in taking an additional unit of 24,000 
sq ft that they will use to increase production and take on a further 12 employees.

Skills

Wilmott Dixon, the construction contractor for Rochdale Riverside are implementing the jobs and 
skills plan approved by the Council. New recruits include two  local ex-service personnel  and an 
apprentice. Wilmott Dixon  also aim to encourage and support young people to consider the 
construction sector as a career choice and have worked with Marland Hill Primary School pupils, 
teaching them to build electrical circuits. Other activity by Wilmott Dixon include a town centre 
newsletter about the Rochdale Riverside development, an activity day aimed at children in the 

Page 49



Wheatsheaf Centre over half term, and used local company GM Construction Training Ltd to 
train their staff in new skills needed on the town centre site.
Thirty unemployed borough residents interested in jobs in the health and social care sector have 
received qualifications, a work placement, and a guaranteed interview with half securing new 
jobs with two Community Interest Companies - Future Directions and Possibilities.

Through joint work with the borough’s Children’s Centres, 80 predominantly lone parents, 
looking to return to work have received training and qualifications in skills such as first aid 
leading to further learning related to their job aspirations.

Employment:

The latest out of work benefit claimant data shows a reduction in the borough across all age 
groups. The borough is now equal 6th of the 10 Greater Manchester districts for the percentage 
of the working age population claiming out of work benefits.

Rochdale Council are part of the Shop Direct Task Force set up by the GM Mayor to support the 
00 borough residents facing redundancy when the company relocates to the East Midlands in 
2020. Staff from Employment Links have supported the council’s Facilities Management Service 
at a Jobs Information day at the Town Hall. Local residents interested in the varied roles will be 
helped to apply and develop their skills which are required by the service. 

The Council’s Employment Links team continue to be one of the country’s top providers of 
employment support and have recently had several contracts extended and successfully 
maintained their Matrix accreditation which is the required quality standard for providing 
information, advice and guidance.

Councillor John Blundell
Portfolio Holder for Regeneration

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of the Council 
about these or any other matter relating to the Regeneration, Business and Skills Portfolio

Page 50



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN’S SERVICES TO THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18th JULY 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Children’s Services Portfolio.

Residential Inspection
Furness Road Residential Home was inspected on 30th April 2018.  The feedback 
from the Inspection from the young people to the Inspectors was extremely 
positive. They feel safe, well cared for and said they are looked after by committed 
staff who are interested in them.  

The Inspection outcomes were Good across the board, with recognition of the hard 
work, dedication and commitment of the Management team. As a result of other 
very positive nominations, the staff team also won the Team of the Year award at 
the Children’s Services staff awards event on 29th June.

Neglect Workshop 
A facilitated workshop across the Partnership was held on 21st June 2018 to 
explore further improving our approach of meeting the needs of children and 
families where neglect is a feature of their family life.  The event was hosted by 
Falinge Park High School, with a high level of engagement and attendance from 
the partnership including the Fire Service and Department of Work and Pensions.  
The conclusions of the event will be used in revising the Neglect Strategy for the 
Borough. 

Staff Awards
A very successful staff awards ceremony took place across Children’s Services for 
the third year.  There were 8 award categories, where staff were nominated by 
colleagues and service users: Employee of the Year, Team of the Year, Working 
Together, Innovation, New Starter, Apprentice, Director’s Leadership award and 
Highly Commended. 

This year had the highest number of nominations (75) so far, endorsing the 
dedication, and hard- work of individuals and teams.  The Employee of the Year 
was nominated by a young person who has received support from her.

The winners will be put forward for the ACE Awards later in the year. 

Apprenticeship Levy
In the first year of the Apprenticeship Levy, Rochdale Council and maintained 
schools started 135 Apprentices, exceeding the aspirational 2.3% headcount target 
of 131. The Local Government Association are only aware of 4 other Public Sector 
organisations who have achieved this target nationally.  Of the 135 starts, 55 were 
brand new posts and 80 were existing staff using Apprenticeship training to 
improve their skills and career development opportunities. 75% of Rochdale 
schools are actively accessing their Levy contributions and business plans are in 
place to support those not currently accessing their funds.  Since April 2018, 
Rochdale Council has started more Apprentices every month than we did in a 
whole year prior to the introduction of the Levy. The team managing the Levy were 
invited to the House of Commons by the Minister of State for Skills and 
Apprenticeships, in recognition of the impact that Rochdale Council is making 
locally and nationally within the Apprenticeship reforms.Page 51

Agenda Item 9f



Outcomes from Ofsted Inspections
As a borough, the percentage of children and young people attending a school 
judged to be good or better continues to improve. All of the borough’s schools 
inspected in the Spring term and those inspected in the summer term to date 
returned a judgement of good or better.  At present, 89% of schools within the 
borough have a judgement of good or better with further inspection results awaited. 
There is a clear indication that those remaining schools with a requires 
improvement judgement are making good progress as evidenced through external 
monitoring and evaluation.  

Primary Schools’ Strategy 
As a Local Authority we are required to outline our arrangements for School 
Improvement through the Rochdale Schools’ Strategy.  The service is currently 
consulting on the latest Schools’ Strategy for primary schools in Rochdale. This 
strategy outlines the Local Authorities arrangements for School Improvement and 
how it will work with key partners to ensure that outcomes in the borough improve 
further.  The team still supports priority schools and offers Inspection readiness 
health checks to all schools in the borough, along with support during inspection 
and post inspection where necessary and provides bespoke support to schools in 
response to specific school based concerns.  

National Lottery Funding for Dippy 
Link4Life and Rochdale Council have been successful in securing more than £90k 
of National Lottery Funding to help us deliver a programme of events and activities 
to accompany Dippy’s visit to Rochdale in 2020. The funding will be used to appoint 
Education and Engagement Officers to help both organisations create a full activity 
programme. The service is interviewing next week for an Education Officer to 
ensure the realization of ambitious and aspirational plans to make Dippy’s visit a 
huge success.

Rochdale Schools Linking Programme
Rochdale Local Authority joined the Linking network in 2017. To date 14 classes 
across 12 schools have engaged with the programme. The Linking Network 
supports schools and communities to develop a positive, cohesive ethos by 
helping children, young people and adults to explore identity, celebrate diversity, 
champion equality and promote community. During the next school year, the 
service aims to extend this project to include more schools in addition to developing 
an offer for parents.  The borough’s initial step of participating in this national 
project has received regional recognition with the council being asked to contribute 
to support the further regional development of this work.

School Readiness Sub Group
Following identification of the requirement for a further focus on School Readiness 
across Rochdale, a sub group of the Children and Young People’s Partnership was 
established. The group has a wide cross agency membership to support a co-
ordinated approach to improving school readiness. It includes NHS representatives 
from Pennine Acute and Pennine Care, Libraries, Home Start, Barnardo’s, 
Childcare Sector (Nursery Schools and PVI Sector), Link 4 Life, Big Life and School 
Improvement. The group has developed a School Readiness Strategy and Action 
Plan linked to the GM School Readiness Plan, and Early Years Communication 
and Language Pathway is in development. Members are actively engaged in the 
School Readiness agenda at a GM level, ensuring Rochdale is helping to shape 
School Readiness at a Combined Authority level. A School Readiness Summit is 
planned for November 2018 to launch the local strategy.

Page 52



Children’s Champions Elections
The Children’s Champion Elections have again been co-ordinated by Rochdale 
Youth Service supported by Primary Schools across the Borough.  From all the 
candidates who applied, 26 children were long listed and invited to interview. The 
day involved taking part in a range of activities and being interviewed by a panel 
comprising of current members of both the Children’s Council and Youth Council. 
From this 6 children from across the Borough were shortlisted. 8579 children took 
part in the election process this year voting in Millie Connor as the new Children’s 
Champion and Isabelle Stott as Deputy.

Councillor Heakin
Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Children’s Services 
Portfolio

Page 53



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT CARE THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18th JULY 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Adult Care Portfolio. I would like to 
update you as to progress made since I last updated you in April earlier this year.

Since April Adult Care has become an active member of the evolving Local Care 
Organisation. 

Much progress has been made in the developing neighbourhood work. We now 
collaborate much more at neighbourhood level. Community health services and 
social care teams have daily “huddles” in the 6 neighbourhood areas where 
information is shared and solutions developed to resolve problems for local people.

Our Local social care team’s actively now link to local home care homes and care 
agencies in their areas working to improve care standards. Our newly appointed 
Community Connectors are increasingly active in the EASY hubs across the 
borough helping people find solutions and access help.

We have also been developing our borough wide services. These services include 
specialist services for people with a Learning Difficulty or for people who have a 
Mental Health issue. Work is ongoing with Pennine Care Foundation Trust to fully 
integrate these boroughwide services as much as we can so we are able to 
enhance the services we offer local people.

 In terms of Delayed Transfers of Care from hospital these continue to remain a 
high priority issue across the whole of our Health and Social care system. Rochdale 
Borough’s Adult Care are still working closely with colleagues in Pennine Care and 
Pennine Acute Trusts to ensure residents of the Borough do not remain in hospital 
if they don’t have to and our performance remains good. Adult Care have recently 
jointly funded a new Patient Flow (community) Service to further enhance our 
response to the needs of local people. This service employs nurses to monitor the 
progress of Rochdale residents in hospitals and works with the hospitals to reduce 
delays and to facilitate a return home or to a community setting. 

If any members would like more information about what these service changes 
means for their constituents then please contact Steven Blezard who will arrange 
for you to be contacted and updated.

In relation to the quality of care in the borough I would like to report that the Mews 
Nursing Home in Rochdale has achieved an outstanding rating by CQC for its 
exceptional quality of care, innovative delivery of services and supportive team of 
dedicated staff.  Only 1% of providers nationally achieve an outstanding rating. 
Inspectors hailed the home’s excellent use of modern technology to support 
people’s independence and privacy and lauded staff for their kind, caring and 
patient approach with residents and for creating a safe and welcoming 
environment.

Page 54

Agenda Item 9g



Events were organised across the borough by Rochdale Carers Hub to support 
National Carer’s Week. I was delighted to attend one of the events at Rochdale 
Town Hall, along with my deputy Councillor Billy Sheerin. There are over 25,000 
carers across the borough and Carers Week celebrated the dedicated and selfless 
work they do to support their loved ones.

We also supported national Dementia Week, with social media posts and events 
and activities held at local care homes across the borough.

It was concerning that the green paper on Adult Social Care funding was delayed 
yet again. Publication for this important paper for local government is now expected 
in the autumn of this year.  

In addition the Adult Social Care service provides care homes with support to 
achieve the Daisy Award Accreditation in relation to dignity and respect in care 
homes and I would like to report that Hulton Care Home has achieved a score of 
100% in relation to this award which has only been achieved once before in the 
past 10 years. 

Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Portfolio Holder for Adult Care

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Adult Care Portfolio

Page 55



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS, COMMUNITY 
AND CULTURE TO THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18TH 

JULY 2018
Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the NEIGHBOURHOODS, 
COMMUNITY AND CULTURE Portfolio.

Safer Communities

Community Safety & Cohesion 
We are pleased to announce that Neighbourhood services has invited the 
voluntary, not for profit and charitable sector to apply for new community safety 
grant funding. There is a total of £100,000 available and grants of up to £20,000 
are available to successful applicants. 

The Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership has strategic oversight over this 
scheme since the Greater Manchester Combined Authority devolved the grants to 
local authorities.  Successful schemes will need to demonstrate how their proposal 
makes a contribution towards:

 keeping people safe,
 reducing harm and offending, and 
 strengthening communities and places across the borough of Rochdale. 

Partnership Enforcement Team
The Partnership Enforcement team are a specialist multi-agency team dealing with 
the serious and complex issues that affect our borough. 55 multi-agency 
enforcement visits have been conducted this quarter resulting in enforcement work 
in areas such as Counter Fraud, Social Tenancy Fraud, Trading Standards, 
Licensing, Food Hygiene, Vulnerability and Safeguarding, Housing Standards and 
Overcrowding. 

Last month the team disrupted and dismantled an Eastern European Organised 
Crime Group based in Rochdale that was responsible for high value car thefts. 
Reports of a property being occupied by a number of unknown males resulted in 
the team applying for warrants under Council powers to enter 2 properties. Housing 
offences were uncovered, 4 males were arrested and a large quantity of custom-
made electronic car theft equipment was seized.

Business Continuity and Emergency Planning
Following from lessons learnt from the recent snow issues in the borough, we have 
now invited council officers, willing to provide community support, on to a voluntary 
register.  The purpose of this is for emergency officers to have the ability to contact 
council staff close to an incident who could be on scene quickly if they are available 
to help support community volunteers, by providing key messages or assistance 
with supporting impromptu rest centres.  There was good response from staff to be 
involved as volunteers for emergencies. 

Page 56

Agenda Item 9h



Townships

Township Committees and Review of Townships
The first Township Committees of 2018/19 took place during June. Items raised by 
members of the public during open forums included the junction 19 housing 
development, school crossing patrols’ provision, maternity provision and traffic 
issues.  All Townships received details of the additional £12m highways investment 
programme. Committees were also consulted on the review of polling districts, and 
were asked to decide on a number of land disposals, and an application for a 
neighbourhood plan.

A cross-party review of the workings of the Townships has been taking place during 
recent months. The Local Government Association has worked with the group to 
look at whether the Townships need to improve engagement within their 
communities; whether members and Townships need to link into the public service 
reform and cooperative Council agendas; and whether the Townships need to work 
better with partners and communities at a neighbourhood level.  Members will be 
consulted during the coming months.

Armed Forces 
The Armed Forces team have been working with the In Bloom team in 2018. The 
theme this year is around the centenary of the end of The Great War. Lamppost 
poppies, silhouettes and flower displays have been popping up across the Borough 
and are being well-received by residents.
The weekly Armed Forces welfare drop in continues at N1R every Thursday from 
11.00am, offering welfare support for veterans. This follows the successful 
Veterans’ Breakfast Club which is attended every week by 40 to 50 veterans and 
dependants.
Armed Forces Week saw a number of events across the Borough including the 
Raising of the Armed Forces Flag on Thursday 28th June at Rochdale Town Hall 
with flag-raising in all Townships. 
Work continues at GM level to offer a minimum commitment by Local Authorities 
regarding the Armed Forces Covenant. This work is being monitored at national 
level by Government and may lead to change in the future. 
Lest We Forget

Libraries, Customer Services and Advice
Another very successful Bookstart event – Picnic in the Park - was held on 
Thursday 14th June in Springfield Park. There was a good participation rate despite 
the windy weather.

The free loan of audiobooks to all customers began a 6 month trial on 1st June. All 
branches have a selection of audiobooks available plus access to the full catalogue 
for reservation. We aim to increase the loan of these items by making them free 
(previous cost £1.40) and more widely available. Last year £19k was spent on 
audiobooks, the income return was £400. Audiobooks are increasing in popularity 
with the advent of services such as Amazon’s Audible, they appeal to a wider 
audience than previously. We also have a wide range of e-audiobooks that are 
already free to loan, it makes sense to make the physical copies free also. 

The Library service has recently undertaken an internal review. This will feed into a 
new Library Service Strategy, which will  include increasing the use of libraries by 

Page 57



external agencies and partners such as public health and NHS. The Strategy will 
also seek to increase the use of volunteers and review different delivery models. 

A procurement exercise is to be undertaken to secure a new contract for the 
delivery of advice services across the borough. We are working with STAR 
procurement to seek a joint delivery contract with Stockport, Trafford and Salford 
councils. 

A large number of vacancies have been filled and a number of staff are starting 
their new roles with the service.  The launch of support for Universal Credit full 
service customers on 16th May was successful and the DWP are pleased with how 
we are supporting customers across the borough.  The service has started a new 
partnership with a new community initiative called Community Connectors where 
we offer services and space to the workers and customers can receive support in 
our trusted safe environments. 

Events
The period April – June is one of the busiest in the local event calendar with 30 
events taking place around the borough.  Local communities and groups have been 
busy organising annual events such as St George’s Day parades in Rochdale, 
Heywood and Middleton, outdoor Eid Prayers, Church Walks, Fun Days and 
sporting and fundraising events.  The Heywood 1940s Day, the Littleborough Food 
and Drink Festival and Norden and Milnrow & Newhey Carnivals were once again 
hugely successful, bringing members of the community together as well as 
attracting visitors to the borough.  

Rochdale Wedding Show returned to the Town Hall in April and we supported 40 
local businesses to showcase their goods and services, encouraging our residents 
to shop local. The Council also supported the annual Tour de Manc cycling Sportif 
event. The route takes in most of the Greater Manchester boroughs with Rochdale 
being chosen to host the start point at the David Lloyd Centre, Bowlee.

Voluntary Sector
New Voluntary Sector Infrastructure Organisation Work is underway to secure 
replacement provision for the voluntary sector infrastructure service (previously 
delivered by CVS). This is an exciting opportunity to support and strengthen the 
voluntary sector across the borough to improve the health and wellbeing of our 
residents. The plan is to have the new service in place by Autumn this year and the 
service specification is currently in development.  

A public consultation has recently been completed which has provided some very 
useful contributions as to what an infrastructure service should assist with. Key 
themes such as influencing, connecting and developing have emerged that the 
service will deliver to, and on behalf of, the voluntary sector in the Borough.

Link4Life Update March 2018

Strategic Update
HMR CCG has informed Link4Life that we will not be receiving any funds for the 
coming year through the CCG’s Social Investment Fund. The funding has been 
refused and reallocated due to the Trust failing the financial checks (L4L reported a 
deficit position last year due to the planned investment of reserves). No opportunity 

Page 58



for appeal has been offered although Andy King (CEO) is following this up. The full 
impact of the reductions in grant, both in terms of delivery, finance and staffing are 
being worked on but are likely to impact on a number of community schemes 
delivered by Link4Life teams across the Borough.

Sport and Leisure
On April 1st 2018 the Council and Link4Life agreed that Link4Life would take on the 
management of Hollingworth Lake and the Countryside Park on an 18 month trial 
basis, with the expectation that investment and improvements can be brought into 
this area and for visitor numbers and the visitor experience to improve.

In preparation, Link4Life has committed £100k investment into the development of 
a retail offer, which includes the purchase of electric powered miniport boats and 
pedalos to complement the existing rowing boats, SUPs and paddleboards. 
Link4Life has also purchased a new passenger boat which is awaiting final trials 
before it goes into service to replace the legendary Lady Alice.

Conversations are ongoing in respect of looking at cross-sector working with the 
countryside rangers and NatureEd to complement and enhance our delivery 
especially with Health and Wellbeing in the outdoors.

A vision for the area is being developed around a Victoria theme with new signage 
and cosmetic improvements also planned. Further phases of activity and attraction 
development are in the early stages of research. 

The Link4Life Swim Academy has shown further growth this financial year as the 
demand for swimming lessons continues to increase. This growth has been 
substantial and sustained following the transition to a continuous lesson based 
programme (from a block programme) and the use of hand held devices and a 
parent’s home portal to provide live monitoring of their child’s progress. The only 
limiting factor for further growth in 2018-19 is the availability of pool space and the 
centre management teams are conducting pool programme reviews to establish 
further pool time for lessons. At the end of March 2018 the lessons programme was 
running at 92.8% capacity.

Fitness memberships have been under increasing pressure from external budget 
gyms over the last few years and they continue to place pressure on our business. 
However, with regards to Fitness related performance, 2017-18 has been a very 
positive year for Link4Life.

Fitness membership levels have grown during 2017-18 from 8928 in April 2017 to 
the current level of 9215. This has been assisted by a simplified membership 
structure and the inclusion of a range of additional member benefits, such as free 
use of the thermal suite at Rochdale Leisure Centre, discounted golf fees, and free 
body composition tests. Added to this is the huge range of fitness classes across all 
fitness centre which overall provides and very popular and competitive package.

Link4Life have also launched a new direct debit option at Bowlee Park Sports 
Centre for membership of the fitness suite on site. Take up of this option has been 
good with 89 customers taking this option.

An extensive Summer Holiday programme has been planned and an exciting 

Page 59



feature packed brochure has been produced and will shortly be sent to all pupils in 
the borough as well as being widely available at our centres and on the Link4Life 
website. This summer also sees the option for children to attend the sessions for a 
full day, which will provide parents with a greater level of flexibility than previously.

The Active Lives survey asks about healthy lifestyles and leisure, recreational, and 
cultural activities. It is conducted by Ipsos MORI on behalf of government agencies 
including Sport England, Arts Council England and Public Health England, and 
gives an overview of levels of physical activity across the UK. Link4Life cannot 
single handily influence the score, but does have a significant role to play in 
encouraging and facilitating the residents of Rochdale to be more active. 

The latest survey results are positive for the borough of Rochdale the trend is 
showing a reduction in the number of inactive people, from 34.49% to 32.38%. This 
is a great result, we continue to strive towards the GM average of 27.8%. 

Culture
Link4Life’s continuing partnership with the Royal Exchange Theatre recently led to 
a performance of ‘Dreams Buried Deep’ a newly commissioned play developed 
with young people about living and growing up in Rochdale. The young performers 
worked alongside RET’s Young Company who also performed ‘Mix Tape’ to an 
invited audience.

Using funding secured from the Art Fund’s New Collecting Awards scheme, 
Touchstones recently acquired work for the Borough collections from Jessica 
Rankin and Clare Kenny.

Link4Life has continued to achieve engagement by a significant number of adults 
taking part in activities organised by the Arts and Heritage service. Link4Life 
exceeded the 10,000 target (11,385).  It also exceeded the number of items 
documented (7,796 achieved vs target of 5,500). Customer satisfaction survey 
results increased (87% achieved vs 80% target) and active volunteer targets 
exceeded (45 vs target 25). Numbers of visits to exhibitions remain challenging 
although investment into new marketing should make a positive impact going 
forward. 

Fundraising activity within the Arts and heritage service has increased significantly. 
In 2017/2018 over £480k has been secured/pledged from Lottery and charitable 
Trusts and Foundations to support projects which provide increased access, quality 
and breadth of creative opportunities for Rochdale communities.

Dippy - Leach Studios have been appointed to develop the exhibition concept for 
Touchstones. A 0.6 Heritage Officer has been appointed and a draft contract has 
been established with RBC to fund the Education post. A formal funding agreement 
has been drafted with RBC to set out the sponsorship and grant arrangements 
between the two organisations.

Feelgood festival - The previously reported application to Arts Council England for 
£4.55k (submitted through RBC) was successful. As a result, Link4Life has 
programmed a range of family focused performance and activities to create a new 
‘Feelgood Festival Square’. Link4Life will be investing £4k of its GMCA Social 
Impact Grant to support programming and as such, are an official partner for the 

Page 60



Festival Square programme. On the day visitors will be able to enjoy a full sized 
‘Actual Reality Arcade’, a ‘Bicycle Ballet’, a floating ‘Urban Astronaut’, ‘the Dance 
we Made’ an interactive dance performance, giant pink flamingos and a range of 
other activities delivered by Link4Life and partners.

School visits - Last year Link4Life implemented a focused strategic plan to target 
reducing the decline in school visits.  Curious Minds, the North West Specialist 
Cultural Education advisory body, funded by Arts Council England, were tasked to 
undertake an external review of our programme to facilitate better engagement with 
schools and also in order to make recommendations given the significant changes 
to the school curriculum, governance and funding models. 

We are now nearing the end of a 12 month period of transformation in line with the 
recommendations. The focus will be to co-design with schools, increase the depth 
of engagement and explore a ‘place’ based cultural curriculum to complement the 
national curriculum. The resulting programme will be launched for Sep 2019. Early 
indications are that school attendance is already increasing (78% of monthly target 
on average April – July). We are confident that this will increase further following 
the launch of the expanded programme.

Gallery Team - Rachel Kneebone exhibition and dance project has been awarded 
just over £40k from Arts Council and £7k from Henry Moore Foundation. May saw 
us open 4 new exhibitions in the Gallery, including the latest, Herbs to Hospitals: 
Health and Wellbeing in Rochdale, celebrating 70 years of the NHS. In February 
Bryan Beresford began a 12-month fixed term post as Curatorial and Community 
Engagement Assistant.  This is part funded by Weston Jerwood Creative bursaries 
for recent graduates from diverse and disadvantaged socio-economic backgrounds. 
We look forward to welcoming the collection of Patrizia Sandretto Re Rebaudengo 
later this month. Together with Caroline Achaintre’s Wimper this continues to tell 
Herstory – our continuing theme of celebration of Women’s Art.

Local Studies - Radio 4 featured Touchstones on a programme on Lancashire 
dialect and research on local suffragettes was published in the Rochdale Observer.  

Museum Team - New displays have been curated by volunteers for the museum’s 
cylindrical display cases. We welcome the input from our valuable team of 
volunteers.

Councillor Janet Emsley
Portfolio Holder for NEIGHBOURHOODS, COMMUNITY AND CULTURE 
Portfolio.

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the NEIGHBOURHOODS, 
COMMUNITY AND CULTURE Portfolio.

Page 61



Page 62



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR HEALTH AND WELLBEING TO THE
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18th JULY 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Health and Wellbeing Portfolio.

Lots of work continues to develop and take place around the health and wellbeing 
agenda in Rochdale borough. 

A development session was held for the Health and Wellbeing Board on 5th June.  
The purpose of the session was to establish a new format for future arrangements 
of the Health and Wellbeing Board, which will support a more consultative 
approach to enable us to work with a wider range of partners and focus on some of 
our key health challenges in the borough.  It was proposed that instead of six 
formal meetings, we have only four meetings, two of which will be H&WB 
Assemblies to engage with a wide range of partners across the borough.

Integrated Prevention Offer: OUR ROCHDALE: CONNECTING YOU is our 
Integrated Prevention offer across Rochdale borough to improve information, 
advice and support about healthy living to reduce the need for people to access 
traditional services such as GPs, hospitals and social care. This was developed as 
part of the Rochdale Borough Locality Plan to upscale our prevention support and 
tackle health inequalities. The Integrated Prevention model encompasses four key 
elements: drawing together and maximising current services; building and utilising 
community assets; investing to strengthen the offer; and proactively reaching out to 
identify those who might benefit most from support. 

All new staff, such as Community Connectors, Focused Care Workers and Health 
Trainers/Coaches, have now been recruited and working alongside other 
Connecting You services (e.g. Community Builders, ‘Living Well’ Mental Health 
Team) via the EASY Hubs, and are now able to provide a local, joined up offer to 
meet our residents social, emotional and practical needs. 

A partnership workshop took place in May to inform a wide range of front line staff 
about the offer and clarify access routes. The Our Rochdale Directory 
http://ourrochdale.org.uk  is central to Connecting You, providing service 
information as well as the ‘Connecting You’ page where residents can benefit from 
our Wellbeing Planner (a planning tool which builds an individual action plan to help 
individuals to improve their health and wellbeing) and Wellbeing Checker (If 
residents feel they’d benefit from individual wellbeing support but aren’t sure who to 
ask or where to go then simply complete this short questionnaire to locate the right 
service for them).

EASY Hubs and Community Connectors
The EASY (Early Access to Support for You) face to face offer is now well 
underway.  The EASY offer provides a place for people with health and social care 
queries to go to access a ‘Community Connector’ and to access information and 
advice about how to navigate the health and social care system as well as 
signposting to support regarding wellbeing. The aim being that if they are helped to 

Page 63

Agenda Item 9i

http://ourrochdale.org.uk/


deal with key simple areas at an early stage this may prevent them needing more 
complex support from services, such as GPs, Urgent Care, Social Care, Police etc. 
in the future.

Twelve Community Connectors have now been recruited and cover eight FTE 
posts (there are four full time staff and eight part time). The value based 
recruitment has meant those employed have a wealth of experience and 
understanding of many of the issues faced by the borough’s residents placing them 
in a good position to help others. The first ones were in post at the beginning of 
April with the full complement in place by 9th May.

A significant training programme has been developed to ensure all those in the 
Core Team have a good understanding of the wider determinants of someone’s 
health and wellbeing. Training has covered the priority areas that local people tell 
us are important to them, including: 

1. Employment – Volunteering – Training;
2. Housing;
3. Money Management and Benefits;
4. Lifestyles including Mental Health;
5. Access to Preventative Services;
6. Getting involved in ‘Our Communities’.

The service began at the beginning of May with referrals from GPs only however, 
by the end of May the team were receiving requests for support from anywhere, in 
particular outreach locations such as foodbanks, health centres and community 
groups.

New Voluntary Sector Infrastructure Organisation
Work is underway to secure replacement provision for the voluntary sector 
infrastructure service (previously delivered by CVS). This is an exciting opportunity 
to support and strengthen the voluntary sector across the borough to improve the 
health and wellbeing of our residents. The plan is to have the new service in place 
by Autumn this year and the service specification is currently in development.  

A public consultation has recently been completed which has provided some very 
useful contributions as to what an infrastructure service should assist with. Key 
themes such as influencing, connecting and developing have emerged that the 
service will deliver to, and on behalf of, the voluntary sector in the Borough.

Making Smoking History in Rochdale
Tobacco remains our biggest preventable cause of ill health and early death in 
Rochdale and a wide number of work streams are being driven forward to tackle 
this addiction. It is promising to see that, as a result of our transformation work, we 
now have a tobacco addiction lead based within Pennine Acute Hospital Trust. This 
presents a valuable opportunity to embed pathways, offer training and provide 
strategic support to help patients to stop smoking before their procedure, ensure 
that a brief intervention takes place at every opportunity to offer support, as well as 
drive the Trust forward to be truly smokefree.

Page 64



Adult Drug and Alcohol Treatment Services
Turning Point is the newly commissioned provider of these services (a joint 
commission with Oldham Council) and the provider has successfully completed the 
implementation period in this first quarter. There have been no significant concerns 
during this period which is a noteworthy achievement, given the complexities of the 
TUPE and client transfer process.

Daily Mile
Encouraging children to become more active is an important way to improve their 
physical, emotional and mental health. The Daily Mile is a national scheme which 
encourages children to run or jog for fifteen minutes a day during school time, in 
addition to their normal playtime and PE lessons.  The aim of The Daily Mile is to 
improve the physical, social, emotional and mental health and wellbeing of our 
children – regardless of age, ability or personal circumstances.  

The Daily Mile is currently being evaluated in Rochdale, in order to understand how 
many schools are taking part throughout the borough. It is also envisaged that 
through engaging schools that are not taking part in the Daily Mile, we can work 
with them to understand the difficulties which are preventing them from taking part, 
and find ways to work around these barriers and increase participation.

Currently we have 26 (38%) schools actively delivering the Daily Mile the borough.
Working in partnership Public Health, Link4Life and the School Sports Partnership 
will promote the Daily Mile to schools and offer support in order to increase the 
number of schools signed up to the initiative to 36 (52%) by March 2019.

Cardiac Smart
Rochdale Borough’s award winning Cardiac Smart programme is set to expand 
further in the next few weeks.  Six potentially lifesaving defibrillators will be installed 
into dis-used BT telephone boxes around the borough.  The council has officially 
adopted six BT phone boxes to convert into hubs to house Community Public 
Access Defibrillators (CPADs) in the heart of our communities.

All six defibrillators will be registered with North West Ambulance Service.  In the 
event of a cardiac arrest when a caller dials 999 the ambulance call handler can 
direct the caller to a nearby defibrillator (200m) providing them with a code which 
will release the defibrillator from a locked cabinet in order to assist the patient until 
help arrives.

Rochdale Accident Prevention Scheme (RAPS) 
The Public Health Service has commissioned Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue 
Service (GMFRS) to deliver a home accident prevention scheme (RAPS - 
Rochdale Accident Prevention Scheme). The scheme is funded by Heywood, 
Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group and commenced in April 
2017. This programme is also included in the Rochdale Locality Plan to commence 
in April 2019.  

The outcome of the scheme is to reduce emergency admissions to hospital for 
accident and deliberate injury in children aged 0-4 years. 

GMFRS deliver targeted Safe and Well visits (previously known as Home Safety 
Checks) which includes health and wellbeing messages and undertake brief 

Page 65



interventions. The home accident prevention scheme is delivered as an extension 
of this programme. Referrals are made via the early year’s workforce and the 
service is well received by parents.

To date 262 families (377 children aged 0-4 years) have benefited from the 
scheme. These families now have 1,293 items of accident prevention equipment 
installed in their homes. 

In children aged 0-4 years, not surprisingly, falls are the main reason for children 
admitted as an emergency to hospital for accidental and deliberate injury. In the 
first year of the scheme falls requiring hospitalisation have reduced by 21 and 
accidents related to heat have reduced by 3.  

The overall rate of emergency admissions to hospital for accidental or deliberate 
injury in children aged 0-4 years has reduced over the course of the scheme from 
242.5 per 10,000 (Q1 2017/18) to 160.8 per 10,000 in Q4.

Workplace Wellbeing
The Rochdale Work and Health Steering Group met for the second time during 
May, with key partners coming together to provide system leadership and 
governance for the joint programme of work relating to health and employment 
within Rochdale.  A key priority in the group is to strengthen the contribution that 
Rochdale employers make to good quality work & healthy workplaces, including the 
public sector leading by example. 

Public Health, together with leads from across the council, have come together to 
progress RBC in becoming a gold standard workplace wellbeing employer.  A 
report was submitted to Leadership in June to seek endorsement to run a short 
Workforce Wellbeing Survey followed by a Workforce Wellbeing stakeholder event 
later in the year to help inform a refreshed Workforce Wellbeing strategy for the 
organisation. This was supported and the Workforce Wellbeing Survey will be 
circulated to all RBC staff mid-July.

Transformation
Rochdale’s Transformation of Health and Care services has started to evidence 
real impact on frontline delivery and is held in high regard with GM Health and 
Social Care Partnership. In particular: 

 Directory of Service, Our Rochdale, is now live
 Easy Hubs have a full complement of local Community Connectors in place, 

and have started to deliver outcomes 
 HEATT Car is making a positive impact on the locality with around 90% of 

cases being deflected away from A&E to be cared for at home and in their 
community.

The Local Care Organisation (LCO) – One Rochdale Health & Care officially 
launched on 1st April. Contract arrangements for the first 17 interventions 
transferring into the LCO in underway and will span Neighbourhoods, Urgent Care 
and Primary Care. 

The Family Services Model (FSM) Partnership continues to meet monthly 
supporting mobilisation of the FSM and the development of the Alliance. Several 
workshops have been held with a range of colleagues to explore the Alliance 

Page 66



approach and its implementation. The outcome of this work will be presented to 
ICB in July. 

Councillor Sara Rowbotham
Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Health and Wellbeing 
Portfolio

Page 67



 ROCHDALE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE CHAIR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CHAIR OF THE HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
TO THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY 18th July 2018

Heywood 1940s Day

This year’s Township sponsored Heywood 1940's Day on Saturday the 23rd 
June 2018 was another great success with record crowds in attendance 
throughout the entire day. 
The prelude was a swing band jive night on Friday the 22nd June 2018, 
organised and hosted by Heywood Civic Centre. 
The heavily decorated Town was thriving, vibrant and busy. Charities raised 
funds and local businesses benefited massively.
The Event date was again chosen to support Armed Forces Week and it 
worked superbly, with a very well attended Armed Forces Day Flag raising and 
a Commemorative Service in The Memorial Gardens and a very large Parade 
marching through the packed Town Centre, led by The Scots Guards 
Association Pipes and Drums with many Flag Standards on Parade, many 
Veterans and all cadets represented in great numbers, enactors, a hundred 
children each carried a balloon with the years1918 to 2018 on them to 
commemorate the 100 year anniversary of the end of World War One, The 
Littleborough School Band, military vehicles and over fifty motor cycles from 
The Lee Rigby Foundation. Next year’s Event will be chosen to once again to 
coincide with and support Armed Forces Week to maintain the fantastic high 
profile Heywood has to put on such successful Events and Parades. 
Visitors and exhibitors travelled from as far away as Kent, all praised our town 
for its friendly atmosphere and the effort and funding put in by the Council and 
local businesses. 
 
Manchester Bee

Township funded the installation of a floral Bee in Queens Park to support, 
remember and commemorate the first anniversary of the Manchester Terrorist 
atrocity of the 22nd May 2017. 

Heywood Integrated Neighbourhood Team

The Heywood Integrated Neighbourhood Team set up in July 2017 and working 
out from Heywood Township Office has been extremely successful in its first 
year in improving the health, wellbeing and quality of life of a large number of 
Heywood residents working holistically and integrating in the Community.
Many thanks for all their hard work.

Hopwood Park 

One of the many Events held in the Park which is a pleasure to report on is The 
Friends of Hopwood Park magnificently attended Community Big Easter Egg 

Page 68

Agenda Item 9j



Hunt Event on Good Friday in which many children took part and refreshments 
were available from The Cabin. Hundreds of children eagerly searched for an 
Easter egg, the Friends of Hopwood Park, the Easter Bunny and two very 
special helpers hid a whopping 750 chocolate bunnies around the park, with an 
additional 19 star prize Easter eggs to be won for those who discovered a 
specially marked one. Two egg hunts took place around the grounds of the 
park: the under-fives had their own hunt around the bowling green, whilst the 
under-11s had free reign of the whole of Hopwood Park. Seventeen children 
took part in the Easter bonnet contest, with four prizes given to the most 
creative designs, including a helter-skelter, a Despicable Me minion, a colourful 
affair, and a red top hot, there was free ice cream for all bonnet contestants. 
The Easter Bunny handed out small chocolate eggs and bunnies to all those 
who didn’t find a prize, so no child went home empty-handed.

Big free children’s activity and fun day with wild flower meadow seeding was 
held on Saturday the 7th April 2018, sponsored by The Heywood Activities 
Partnership, the day was very well attended and all enjoyed the inflatables, 
games and crafts.   

The transformation of the old transport office in to a Café is well under way 
thanks to Township contributions and is due to open this September. Seasonal 
events will continue throughout the entire year.

RAF Centenary

The Heywood Veterans Association held a respectful Service in Heywood 
Memorial Gardens on Sunday the 1st April 2018 to recognise and 
commemorate the 100 year anniversary of the RAF.

Queens Park

Good news is that the reconstruction of the Theatre is complete and it is now 
fully open, being used and available for all our excellent Summer activities 
programme in our Green Flag Park. Many thanks to our Environmental 
Management team for all their hard work and overcoming numerous obstacles 
both material and legal. 
Many thanks to our new proprietor of the Café which supports all Park 
activities, they are a credit to the public and the Café is well established as a 
Community Hub which runs throughout the entire year. 
 
Back O’Moss Community Centre

Back O’ Moss Community Centre has built up and excellent client base 
providing amongst others, very reasonable pensioners lunches, outings, bingo,  
after school clubs, NHS provision and numerous family social events creating 
excellent Community Cohesion.  
 
Heywood Foodbank

The need for Heywood Foodbank to move out of their existing premises has 
become critical and Heywood Township is assisting them to relocate to the 
Back O’Moss Community Centre.

Page 69



St. George’s Day

Township Chair proudly raised the St. George Flag in Heywood Memorial 
Gardens with fellow Elected Members, the Heywood Veterans Association, with 
Flag Standard, and members of the public.

Heywood Link Road

Plans for the new Junction 19  M62 link road, which will help to create 
thousands of new jobs and homes, have moved closer following the decision 
by the Secretary of State not to call in the planning application. The proposals, 
will see the delivery of 1,000 new homes, 1.5million square feet of employment 
space and a new primary school over the next 18 years, The decision brings 
millions of pounds of investment into the borough of Rochdale, including 
funding already allocated to the new link road. The Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority is to contribute £10.3m to the project and Highways 
England has committed a further £1.75m. The remainder of the cost will be met 
by the developer. The scheme is estimated to be worth £175m per annum to 
the local economy once complete, and is set to create around 2,800 full time 
equivalent jobs plus a further 180 temporary construction jobs each year during 
the build. The benefits of the new link road will be felt by the local community as 
well as the numerous logistics businesses already located within the Borough, 
with significant traffic taken off local routes. Vehicles accessing South Heywood 
Distribution Park will no longer have to travel through Heywood town centre or 
up to Simister Island and onto the M66 motorway. A primary school will be 
created at the site, alongside eight hectares of public open space and a multi-
use games area. The developer will also plough more than £1m into local bus 
services and new bus stops.

Police and Community Safety 

The Heywood Neighbourhood Inspector Paul Wood will be working with the 
Community and all partner agencies over the next twelve months, building on 
the keen community spirit that exists in Heywood and is targeting reductions in 
crime and anti-social behaviour. 

Over the coming twelve months he will be coordinating a number of initiatives 
to reduce anti-social behavior and arrest offenders.

I was invited to and took part as an adjudicator in the GMP “Giving Back to our 
Communities” Fund Event, referred to in my previous Report. Due to an 
unprecedented amount of interest, RBC doubled the £10,000 of seized criminal 
assets available to Groups applying. The Event took place in Heywood Civic 
Centre and was a massive success, extremely well attended with six hard 
working Community Groups benefitting and all of whom will be targeting 
reductions in anti-social behaviour to the benefit of the Town.

Inspector Wood believes that working with the community is the key to any 
success that Heywood Neighbourhood team attains and will be interacting with 
the community in a number of ways, such as online PACT meetings to be 

Page 70



conducted every month and face to face meetings will be conducted every 
three months or by exception. PCSOs will conduct surgeries within the 
community and most importantly his team will be seen actively out and about 
on patrol speaking with and engaging all.
 
Cllr Peter Rush
Chair of Heywood Township

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of the 
Council about these or any other matter relating to the Heywood Township 
Committee.

Page 71



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE CHAIR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE TO THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY 18TH JULY 2018 

Thank you Mr Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Middleton Township.

Township Committee

Middleton Township Committee meeting took place on Thursday 7th June 2018.  
This meeting was my first Township Committee as the newly elected Chair of 
Middleton Township.  

Members appointed Councillor Susan Smith to Vice Chair of Middleton Township 
Committee for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

Members received a number of questions to be heard during the Open Forum, 
including:

 The Proposed Free School in Middleton
 Langley Central Core (Lakeland Court)
 Play Pitch Strategy
 May Day 2018

The committee received a presentation on the Easy Hubs and Community 
Connector Service.

The minutes of the previous Middleton Township Committee and Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub-Committee were approved by 
Middleton Members and the following reports were received:

 Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places. 
 Release of surplus land at two sites in Middleton Township.
 Middleton additional Highway Investment proposed programme. 
 Middleton Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointment 2018/2019. 
 Middleton Township Funds Review 

Township Sub-Committees and Working Parties

The cycle of sub-committees which took place in this quarter, and some of the 
issues raised are detailed below:

Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-Committee

Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-Committee 
took place on Wednesday 4th July 2018, and a number of applications were 
considered including:

 Middleton Band National Finals
 GMP/Middleton Pub Watch Scheme Support
 Langley Library Activities
 Middleton Town Centre Christmas Lights Switch On 2018

Page 72

Agenda Item 9k



 Middleton Town Centre Management Function 2018
 Hollin Lane Solar Speed Sign Repair
 Evesham Road and Walsingham Avenue Waiting Restrictions 
 Manchester Old Road Limited Waiting Scheme 
 Byron Road Grass Verges 
 Buttons and Bows Pre-School Play Area 
 Middleton Town Centre Festive Lighting 
 Middleton Target Hardening Funds Scheme 
 Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation League for Life

Middleton Members approved schemes totalling £48,476.06, of which £13,866.56 
were Capital schemes.

Regeneration

The Middleton Regeneration Group met on Monday 11th June 2018 and discussed 
a number of items including:

 Lodge Street Area 
 Hopwood Hall 
 Tonge Hall 
 Providence Chapel 
 The Nowster
 Middleton Town Centre Masterplan Refresh 
 Derelict Buildings

Members are looking forward to an upcoming visit to Hopwood Hall to see what 
work is needed and to look at the current condition of the building.

Middleton Environment & Culture Forum

Due to the timings of the sub-committees in this quarter, the Middleton Environment 
and Culture Forum hadn’t met prior to the deadline for this report.  A number of 
items will be discussed at the meeting including:

 Update from the ongoing work of the Public Realm Officers. 
 Street Cleaning, Waste, Clean & Green. 
 Updates from the friends of groups here in Middleton. 

PACT Meetings (Police and Community Together) held this quarter:

East – Thursday 21st June 2018
The remaining four Ward PACT meetings will take place as follows:
North – Thursday 19th July 2018 
South – Monday 23rd July 2018  
West – Wednesday 25th July 2018 
Hopwood Hall – Thursday 26th July 2018 

Police & Councillor Briefing

Middleton Members are pleased to meet with the Middleton Neighbourhood 
Inspector and Sergeant on a quarterly basis and discuss any ongoing issues 
including ASB and burglary.   We are also pleased to always receive good news 

Page 73



stories from our local team and I would like to take this opportunity to thank them 
for their continuous efforts here in Middleton. 

Middleton Township Chairs Highways, Street Lighting and Environmental 
Management Briefing

The Middleton Township Chairs Highways, Street Lighting and Environmental 
Management Briefing took place on Thursday 5th July 2018 and I met with Officers 
from the above departments to discuss ongoing issues and work programmes 
including:

 Highways line painting
 Long Street paving 
 Middleton In Bloom 
 Rose beds 
 Banners on gateway routes 
 Christmas lighting 

News Stories 

May Day 2018

The May Day 2018 event took place on Monday 7th May, and we were very lucky 
this year that the weather was kind to us.  The event was very well attended and St. 
Michael’s Brass Band played in the bandstand.  The Morris Men were in 
attendance and lots of other activities took place including the traditional Maypole 
dance.  There were stalls, singers and food.  Special thanks must go to Middleton 
Roundtable for organising another fantastic May Day event. 

Middleton In Bloom

Middleton is set to be judged prior to the Full Council Meeting, and I would like to 
take this opportunity to say thank you to the volunteers in the Middleton In Bloom 
Team and Officers from Environmental Management and all the other unsung 
heroes who both work tirelessly to ensure that Middleton looks at its very best.  We 
hope to follow the success of last year’s competition where Middleton received a 
silver award in its very first year!  Best of luck to the teams.

Middleton Armed Forces Event

I was very honoured to attend the Middleton Armed Forces Event on Thursday 28th 
June 2018 at the Middleton Memorial Gardens, alongside the Mayor, Cabinet 
Member, fellow Middleton Councillors, other officials and veterans plus a number of 
members of the public who all came out in the beautiful weather, to enjoy the 
service.

The event this year was very well attended and it was brilliant to see so many 
people showing their support for the men and women who make up the Armed 
Forces community, from currently serving troops to Service families, veterans and 
cadets.

Special thanks must go to Ron Aikens of the Middleton Royal British Legion and 
Officers from Environmental Management who work hard to ensure that Middleton 

Page 74



Memorial Gardens looks fantastic throughout the year.

   

     

Middfest 2018

I would like to take this opportunity to publicise the upcoming Middfest event, which 
is scheduled to take place on Sunday 22nd July 2018 at Limefields on Manchester 
Old Road in Middleton.  The Middfest event has been running for over 25 years and 
I am sure that this year’s event will be excellent as in previous years.

Page 75



Councillor Donna Williams
Middleton Township Chair

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the MiddletonTownship 
Committee.

Page 76



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE CHAIR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE PENNINES TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE TO THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18TH JULY 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Pennines Township.

Highways Service
Highways continue to support Pennines Township with their aims and objectives.  A 
number of schemes have been progressed since being commissioned by Township 
and work is due to start in the next couple of months on the two year highway 
maintenance programme. Work to refresh the road lining around Hollingworth Lake 
has been ordered and is due to start shortly.

Library Service
The library service review is now complete and awaiting comments from the 
portfolio holder and the Leader. 
The consultation survey was a great success with 703 people taking the time to 
complete it. The results were overwhelmingly positive with the majority of 
respondents in favour of keeping and expanding the service. 
We held a fines amnesty in February and the results are being shared with the 
Leader and Portfolio holder soon. 

A new Genealogy course started at Smallbridge on 30th April 10.30 – 11.30 which 
will help customers trace their family tree. 
Milnrow Library hosted ‘Walking the Pennine Way’ talk and slide show on Thurs 
19th April which was a great success.
A new Senior member of staff started at Smallbridge library at Easter – Deborah 
Ryan. She has already made some great changes to the branch and has many 
more planned. 
A trial is being run making all audiobooks free to lend by everyone and people are 
being encouraged to try a different way to enjoy their favourite authors.

Youth Service
The Mayors Youth Awards were an amazing success and Tuesday session at 
Milnrow youth group, who planned everything, were fantastic. Throughout the 
process they showed total commitment, were fair and unprejudiced during the 
award shortlisting and did an overall fantastic job. 
The Thursday Milnrow Group and Smallbridge young people have been discussing 
and learning about Ramadan. During discussions they expressed an interest in 

Plans are underway for this year’s Fit Feed and 
Read and Summer Reading Challenge and 
applications for Township funding have been  
approved.
World Book Day was held on 1st March, 
however, many events had to be postponed due 
to the heavy snowfall. Littleborough library held 
their event on Monday 5th March 

Page 77

Agenda Item 9l



visiting a mosque. This resulted in a visit to Khizra Mosque in Manchester for a 
community Iftar event where they joined in with breaking fast, enjoying a lovely 
meal with members from the mosque. The young people commented on how 
welcome they felt and said that they had learned a lot about the Muslim faith and 
culture.
Primary schools throughout the Pennines (and the rest of the Borough!) have been 
taking part in the elections for the new Children’s Champion. Millie Connor, a pupil 
from Holy Trinity School, Littleborough was elected. George Holt the retiring 
Children’s Champion is from Littleborough Community Primary School and his 
Deputy Maisha Samiullah from Hamer Primary have had a very productive year.
Youth workers have been engaging young people through street based work in the 
Pennines. Discussions have been held with young people who are causing anti-
social behaviour at the tram stops; this is an ongoing piece of work which involves 
a number of partner agencies. 

Community News

Littleborough Food and Drink Festival
The festival, now in its fourth year, was again a huge success for Littleborough.  
The event attracted large numbers of people, local and from outside the area, 
putting Littleborough on the map and creating a thriving event for all to enjoy.  The 
festival brings together local businesses with mutual relationships and connections 
made and also the community comes together for a day of fun, food and 
entertainment. 

Milnrow and Newhey Districts Carnival 
The carnival celebrated its 50th Anniversary, the theme this year was the 60’s. 
Hundreds of people lined the streets to enjoy all 37 floats, the largest in a number 
of years. Lots of schools and local businesses took part in the parade, led from the 
front by Milnrow Brass Band. The procession returned to Milnrow Memorial Park for 
all to enjoy the full range of activities available including live music, paintballing and 
fairground rides. 

Tommy for Wardle
As part of the WW1 centenary, a ‘Tommy’ sculpture has been purchased for the 
community of Wardle. The sculpture is part of the There But Not There 2018 
Armistice Project for the charity Remembered.   

Councillor Amna Mir
Pennines Township Chair

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Pennines Township

Page 78



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE CHAIR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE TO THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18TH JULY 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Rochdale Township.

Firstly I would like to take this opportunity to say that it is an honour to have been 
chosen once again to Chair the Rochdale Township Committee for 2018/19. I last 
held this position during 2014/15 and I look forward to representing the Township in 
relation to a number of wide-ranging issues.

The first Township Committee of the municipal year took place on 13th June, as 
always it was a lively and interesting meeting. The open forum gave an opportunity 
to residents to address the committee on matters such as lack of maternity 
provision, traffic issues, a village green application and the former Turner Brothers 
site. A number of land disposals were agreed and these will now be pursued. 
Members also noted Rochdale’s share of the additional £12m investment for our 
highways and our footways.

Rochdale Town Centre Rising Bollards

The rising bollard systems installed as part of the Town Centre paving scheme in 
2017 are now live.  
The Traffic Regulation Order along Yorkshire Street and Baillie Street prohibits 
driving whereby no vehicles are allowed between the hours of 10am and 6pm. 
Outside of these hours is for delivery goods vehicles only and all deliveries should 
be made to the area between 6pm – 10am. All bollards will be monitored via CCTV 
and no unauthorised access will be allowed.  A briefing document has been 
circulated to all members.

Rochdale Riverside (Genr8)
The construction of our Rochdale Riverside retail & leisure scheme continues to 
make good progress.  The contractors Willmott Dixon have been busy on site 
carrying out piling and remediation works, and constructing the new access road.  
The development is expected to be open in summer 2020.

Rochdale Town Hall & Town Hall Square 
Our plans to transform the Town Hall have been given a major boost after the 
Heritage Lottery Fund approved the 1st stage of an £8.9m bid.  This award 
means we can now progress plans to restore and redevelop the Grade 1 listed 
building. Our plans to improve the Town Hall Square are also being progressed and 
specialist landscape architects will be appointed later in 2018 to create some 
designs.

Market 
We continue to make progress on the permanent market, next to the re-opened 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9m



River Roch. The fit out of the Santander building to create a small food hall is 
progressing and work is underway to create the new loading facilities.  The new 
market is expected to be operational in August 2018.   

Fire Service Museum 
We are working closely with the Greater Manchester Fire Service Museum Trust to 
bring forward proposals to transform the former fire station building and create a 
dedicated exhibition space. A second stage Heritage Lottery Fund bid was 
submitted in March 2018 and a decision is expected in June.  

Rochdale Town Centre Pop-up Show Garden
The garden has recently been planted and has a World War 1 theme. A WW1 
commemoration bench has been placed there, looking through a picture frame that 
frames the view towards the cenotaph and which people will be able to place 
poppies in.  Amongst other plants, there will of course be poppies which Bowlee 
Nursery are currently growing.  Other features include a line of three columnar 
trees to provide structure, signage, stone seating with side and backs with a 
representation of the heritage tiles in the Town Hall and cut outs of WW1 soldiers.  
The garden will be maintained by the existing Town Centre gardeners.

The garden will stay there until after the November commemorations and then be 
dismantled and re-erected in a slightly simplified format in a park (to be decided) 
elsewhere in the Borough.  The site will be cleaned and made ready for the 
Christmas tree.  There is a possibility that another garden can pop up there every 
year, perhaps with a dinosaur theme for 2019 to get people excited about the then 
imminent arrival of Dippy the following February.

Councillor Sultan Ali
Rochdale Township Chair

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the RochdaleTownship.

Page 80



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CHAIR’S REPORT TO 
THE COUNCIL

WEDNESDAY, 18th JULY 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

The Committee has met on one occasion thus far in 2018/19 on 19th June 2018, 
which proved to be a productive and interesting meetings and it was good to meet 
new Members who have recently been appointed to this Committee. 

19th June 2018

Health Related Sickness Absences
The Committee received a report that provided us with the fourth quarter and year 
end (2017/18) health related absence figures to Members, with an assessment 
against Directorate and Corporate targets. It was pleasing to note that in this regard 
Rochdale was the third best performing authority in Greater Manchester, behind 
Oldham and Tameside. Tameside’s figures were so much better than any other 
authority that we have asked the Head of Human Resources to find out more 
information from them to see if we can learn any lessons that would lead to our 
workforce, overall, having an even better attendance record. 

Directorate Plan Updates and Directorate Plans 2018/19
The Committee received the usual quarterly reports that provided a summary of 
key activities in the Resources Directorate and the Community Services element of 
the Neighbourhoods Directorate, during the 4th quarter of 2017/18. In accordance 
with the Council’s performance management framework; progress towards the 
targets contained in directorate plans were to be reported to the relevant Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee at the end of each quarter. We received a reassuringly 
comprehensive account from the Director of Resources regarding the actions from 
his Directorate that were still in progress. 

The Committee also received the 2018/19 Directorate Plans for the Resources and 
the Neighbourhoods Directorates. It was pleasing to see so much detail of planned 
activity in both Directorates for 2018/19. Arising from these Plans a number of 
reports will be presented to future meetings of our Committee prior to their 
consideration by the Cabinet. These include proposals for a Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy, the Borough’s Organisational Strategy, the Borough-wide Digital Strategy 
and the authority’s Corporate Plan.

Finance Reports
The Committee scrutinised three finance related reports that provided Members 
with details of the Collection Fund Outturn report 2017/18, the Finance outturn 
report and the Finance Update report – further updates of which we receive 
periodically throughout 2018/19.

Page 81

Agenda Item 9n



Work Programme
The Committee considered its Work Programme for the ensuing Municipal Year.  In 
considering topics for study groups to be undertaken in 2018/19, we were informed 
of the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee’s intention to undertake a study into the Highways and Footpaths 
Improvement Programme that had recently been approved by the Cabinet, 
including scrutiny of the performance of the contractor, which undertook the 
majority of highways related works in the Borough, Balfour Beattie Limited. We 
therefore suggested that the Chair of the  Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee be approached to ascertain the 
value of undertaking a joint study into this matter and I am pleased that Councillor 
Meredith has agreed to this approach.

We also agreed to receive a report, later on in the year relating to the future 
operation of the Council’s Township service, which is currently the subject of a 
review and to examine ways of receiving meaningful performance related 
information about the Township service. 

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool
The Committee considered Minutes of meetings of the most recent GMCA’s 
Corporate Affairs Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Councillor Mike Holly
Chair of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

Page 82



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CHAIR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

COUNCIL - WEDNESDAY, 18th July 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Communities. Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The Committee has met once thus far in the 2018/19 Municipal Year. The Energy 
Study Group continues to progress and I will update Council on this also.

I would like first to pay tribute to my predecessor, Councillor Neil Butterworth, who 
was Chair of this Committee for the past three years. Councillor Butterworth worked 
hard to get more accessible and easier to read reports before the Committee and 
he was a pioneer for paperless meetings and I am sure he will be pleased to note 
the Council’s corporate intention to conduct paperless meetings during 2018/19. In 
addition Councillor Butterworth has been working hard, with colleagues across 
Greater Manchester to create an energy company that will ultimately be able to 
offer a cheaper source of gas and electric to our residents. I am keen to continue 
his work in this regard.      

28th June 2018

We received a report from the Council’s Strategic Housing Service that provided 
details of the local Welfare Provision at the end of 2017/18. The report outlined the 
previous 12 months provision of the Discretionary Crisis Fund; detailing applicants 
to the scheme, the reasons why and what awards were made. The report also 
detailed the successes of the community based projects funded by the Local 
Welfare Provision budget. Access to the Rochdale and Heywood Food Banks was 
also included in the report.

The Discretionary Crisis Fund provides ‘white goods’ and basic furniture in support 
of those setting up home when resettling from temporary accommodation; for 
example when fleeing domestic abuse or leaving temporary homelessness 
accommodation. The Fund also provides a mechanism to make small crisis awards 
for those who find themselves in financial difficulty; for example, to provide 
emergency household fuel, or for an emergency clothes allowance. The 
Discretionary Crisis Fund received 1,351 applications throughout 2017/18; 57% of 
these were made via the telephone, with the remainder being submitted online. 
66% of applications were successful and 30% were refused. 86 of the applications 
were withdrawn or cancelled by applicants, or were pending a decision at the time 
of this report. 

Directorate Plan Updates – Neighbourhoods and Economy Directorates (including 
RDA)
The Committee scrutinised reports of the Directors of Economy which advised of 
the progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st January 2018 – 31st March 2018) towards 
the achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate Plan 2017/18, 
including Rochdale Development Agency.

Page 83

Agenda Item 9o



Directorate Plan Update – Neighbourhoods Directorate
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Economy which advised of 
the progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st January 2018 – 31st March 2018) towards 
the achievement of the targets contained in the Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 
2017/18.

Work Programme
The Committee considered the first draft of its Work Programme for 2018/19. 
Members were advised that amendments to the Work Programme would be made 
on an ongoing basis throughout the year to reflect current and forthcoming 
challenges to be faced by the Authority in general and this Committee in particular. 
The Committee was also advised that there was a responsibility to report the Work 
Programme to the Council for information purposes.

The Committee were advised that some issues could be scrutinised in conjunction 
with one or both of the other two Overview and Scrutiny Committees; in this regard 
The Committee considered its Work Programme for the ensuing Municipal Year.  In 
considering topics for study groups to be undertaken in 2018/19, we were informed 
of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny’s wish to work with us to undertake a study 
into the Highways and Footpaths Improvement Programme that had recently been 
approved by the Cabinet, including scrutiny of the performance of the contractor, 
which undertook the majority of highways related works in the Borough, Balfour 
Beattie Limited.

 

Councillor Daniel Meredith – Chair - Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Page 84



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CHAIR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE CHAIR OF THE HEALTH SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW 
AND SCRTUINY COMMITTEE TO THE

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18TH JULY 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Health, Schools and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

May I first take this opportunity in thanking my predecessor Councillor Wendy 
Cocks for her help, support and understanding in helping me take on this new role 
as Chair of this Scrutiny Committee!

My thanks also to my Vice Chair Councillor Pat Sullivan and other Committee 
members for their input and time over the past weeks.

The Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s (bit of a mouth 
full!) main function is to provide ‘critical friend’ challenge. Enable the voice and 
concerns of the public to be heard and drive improvement in public services.

Our first meeting was to receive the council’s response to the Independent Inquiry 
into Child Sexual Abuse (IICSA) following its investigation into historic events in 
Rochdale. The report we received summarised the findings from the Independent 
inquiry report, its context and process, but importantly to provide members with the 
information and assurance about what has changed since that period. It was 
pleasing to note that a total of 38 members of the Council were in attendance at 
this meeting.

It would be remiss of me if I did not record my total admiration, respect and thanks
To our Director of Children’s Services Gail Hopper for her professional manner in 
taking up this challenge, on behalf of this Council.
 
My further roles of responsibilities came a bit of a shock, being informed that as 
Chair you sit on the Pennine Acute Hospitals Trust and Greater Manchester 
Overview Scrutiny Committee as well! Bring it on! Ray. I will report in due course on 
the activities of these two bodies.

There was a further meeting of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 27th June where we considered a full and varied agenda 
including:

a. Market Oversight Report – 4th Quarter 2017/18
We received a report which asked us to consider the market oversight report which 
provides quality assurance information for services commissioned by the Adult 
Care service for 2017/18. The Adult Care Service commissions external provider 
services to deliver a range of Care services to adults with eligible social care 
needs. The Adult Care Commissioning team assures the quality of these services 
and the Care Quality Commission also regulates some of the services and the 
market oversight report presented quality assurance information for the whole of 

Page 85

Agenda Item 9p



2017/18.

b. Link4Life Annual Performance Review 2017/18
The Committee scrutinised report that provided information relating to the 
performance of the Rochdale Boroughwide Cultural Trust, trading as Link4Life at 
the end of the financial year 2017/18. 

c. Directorate Plans – Quarterly Update
The Committee scrutinised a report that presented details of progress in the fourth 
quarter 2017/2018 (January – March) towards targets contained in the Adult Care, 
Children’s Services and the Public Health Directorate Plans.

d. Social Care Complaints – 4th Quarter 2017/18
The Committee received a report that provided us with a summary of Adult and 
Children’s Social Care complaints received during the fourth quarter 2015/2016 
(January – March). 

e. Work Programme 2018/19
The Committee considered its work programme for 2018/19 and I am confident that 
the Programme reflects the challenging and diverse remit of the Committee and we 
will continue to strive to effectively scrutinise the providers of health, social care 
and education throughout 2018/19.

Councillor Ray Dutton
Chair of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Thank you Mr. Mayor, I will be pleased to answer any questions from Members of 
the Council about these or any other matter relating to the Health, Schools and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 86



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

OUTSIDE BODY REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE LEAD MEMBER FOR
TRANSPORT 

TO THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL ON WEDNESDAY, 18th JULY 2018

Thank you Mr. Mayor for the opportunity to report to the Council on the latest 
developments on various matters relating to the Transport issues.

Greater Manchester’s smart traffic light expansion given the green light
Greater Manchester is set to see a multi-million pound expansion of its sophisticated 
smart traffic light network as part of an ongoing programme to tackle congestion 
across the city-region.  The £5.6m scheme, funded by Local Growth Deal Funding, 
will be invested in two systems: SCOOT and MOVA – which will mean Greater 
Manchester will have the largest smart traffic light network in the country outside 
London. SCOOT (Split Cycle Offset Optimisation Technique) enables groups of traffic 
signals in busy areas to work together so that traffic flow is smoother and congestion 
reduced. Sensors pick up traffic data and use it to synchronise the lights so capacity 
is increased and delays reduced. Studies have shown SCOOT has increased traffic 
performance by up to 15% compared to a fixed time system.

Rail Safety
Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) recently held week of action, which was 
aimed at reinforcing vital safety messages around rail and light rail. TfGM, tram 
operator KeolisAmey Metrolink (KAM), Network Rail and train operating companies 
took part in Rail Safety Week, which ran from 2 - 8 July.  The national campaign was 
launched with a special awareness-raising event at Manchester Piccadilly station on 
2nd July. Visitors were able to try their hand at the tram driving simulator used to train 
Metrolink drivers, enabling them to experience and understand the daily challenges 
facing drivers, such as inclement weather conditions, poor visibility and navigation 
through highly pedestrianised areas. Operator representatives were also present to 
provide useful information on rail safety. 

Transport for Greater Manchester signs contract for 27 new trams
TfGM have signed a £72million contract that will see 27 new Metrolink trams bolster 
the UK’s largest tram network. The contract – with manufacturer Bombardier 
Transportation UK and Kiepe Electric – will increase capacity on the network by 15%. 
The new trams will provide 4,800 extra spaces and used to run more ‘double’ trams 
on the busiest lines. The first tram is expected to arrive in February 2020, with other 
units following on a monthly basis through to June 2021. This is good news for 
Rochdale as in time we will see more and faster trams operating on the Rochdale 
line.

‘Beelines’ – the cycling and walking network  
Chris Boardman, Greater Manchester’s Cycling and Walking Commissioner, has 
unveiled an innovative new plan to create a city-region-wide cycling and walking 
network made up of more than 1,000 miles of routes, including 75 miles of ‘Dutch-
style’ segregated bike lanes.

Page 87

Agenda Item 9q



The ‘Beelines’ network will be the largest joined-up system of walking and cycling 
routes in the UK and has been developed with all 10 Greater Manchester local 
authorities – which means a significant expansion for the Rochdale Borough.

Once built, the network will better connect every community in Greater Manchester, 
benefitting 2.7 million people and making cycling and walking a real alternative to the 
car. 

The proposals, which were approved by the Greater Manchester Combined Authority 
at its meeting on 29th June, also included plans for 1,400 safer road crossings on the 
majority of routes and 25 ‘filtered neighbourhoods’, where priority was to be given to 
the movement of people and where more public spaces to sit, play and socialise will 
be created.

People in Greater Manchester make around 250 million car journeys of less than one 
mile each year – the equivalent of a 15-minute walk or a five-minute bike ride.
A large proportion of these trips are school runs. In the Netherlands, 50% of children 
cycle to school every day – in Greater Manchester the number is less than 2%. 
‘Beelines’ aims to make walking and cycling the natural choice for short journeys.

Heywood Local Link Service
There have been recent changes to the Heywood Local Link service, which was 
approved at the meeting of TfGM’s Bus Network and TfGM Services (BNTS) sub- 
committee on 6th of July 2018 and which will be implemented in October 2018. In 
summary, the change is as follows:

 Weekend operating hours were extended from 09:00 - 17:00 to 05:00 - 19:00 
to enable the carriage of more employment trips to the employment within the 
area (including the Pilsworth Industrial estate and Heywood Distribution 
Centre).

 The Monday to Friday hours were slightly adjusted from 05:30 to 23:00 to 
05:00 to 22:30 to enable the service to be used by those requiring access to 
early morning shift work.

Bus Services Changes in the Rochdale Area
Below is a summary of the bus service changes in the Rochdale area that was 
reported to the Bus Networks and TfGM Services meeting that was held on 6th July 
2018.
 
Rosso commercial service changes effective 22nd July 2018 included:

 Service 442 Rochdale – Bury Road – Bamford  - (Norden)  evening journeys 
currently operate Rochdale to Bamford and will be extended to Norden as per 
the daytime journeys.

 Service 467 Bury – Daniel Fold – Rochdale & service 468 Bury – Cutgate – 
Rochdale - frequency increased to at least every 10 minutes between 
Bamford, Fairfield and Bury.  6 buses per hour between Rochdale and Bury. 
Improved timetable with revised evening and Sunday journeys.

 Service 468 – Bury – Cutgate – Rochdale: Monday to Saturday daytime 
frequency increases.

Subsidised service changes which were to be effective from 3rd September 2018 
included: 

Page 88



 Service 12 Middleton – Boarshaw – Moorclose Circular frequency revised to 
operate every 40 minutes due to punctuality problems (operated by 
Stagecoach); 

 Service 129 Middleton – Hollin – Boarshaw Circular - frequency revised to 
operate every 40 minutes  due to punctuality problems  (operated by Selwyns)

 Service 412 Oldham – Royton- Mills Hill – Boarshaw – Middleton: The Sunday 
daytime service sees its frequency reduce from every 60 to every 90 minutes

Anti-social Behaviour
As members will be aware the Metrolink line between Rochdale and Oldham 
continues to be plagued by anti-social behaviour. 

Parents have being encouraged to know what their kids are up to after tram services 
were temporarily suspended due to antisocial behaviour near Oldham. At about 
6.30pm on Thursday, 14th June, a driver reported that a tram window had been 
smashed between Hollinwood and Failsworth.

Services along the Rochdale via Oldham line were then temporarily suspended after 
two subsequent trams were also targeted when travelling through the same area. An 
ambulance was called for one person who reported having glass in their eye.
 
Police were called and TravelSafe Officers searched the area before services 
resumed. Overt and covert patrols were in place throughout the evening and will 
continue in the area. CCTV from the trams is now being viewed to see what footage 
can be handed to police.  

The vandalism came two nights after four bus shelters were smashed in Heywood.
Despite the attacks, reports of antisocial behaviour had been reducing as a result of 
joint operations with the other agencies within the TravelSafe Partnership and local 
policing teams following a spate of incidents in the local area earlier in the year, 
including on the transport network. 

The Rochdale and Oldham areas continue to be a focus for Transport for Greater 
Manchester, Metrolink, police, local councils and other partners.  

Councillor Phil Burke
Lead Member for Transport

Page 89



1 

 

4 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED 

AUTHORITY, HELD ON FRIDAY 27 APRIL 2018 
AT GREATER MANCHESTER FIRE SERVICE TRAINING CENTRE. 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor  Andy Burnham 
Deputy Mayor    Baroness Beverley Hughes  
(Policing and Crime) 
Bolton      Councillor Linda Thomas 
Bury      Councillor Rishi Shori 
Manchester     Councillor Richard Leese, (Deputy Mayor) 
Oldham    Councillor Jean Stretton 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford     City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport     Councillor Wendy Wild 
Tameside     Councillor Brenda Warrington 
Trafford     Councillor Sean Anstee 
Wigan      Councillor David Molyneux 
 
OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDENCE: 
 
GMWDA, Chair    Councillor Nigel Murphy 
TfGMC, Chair    Councillor Guy Harkin 
Bury     Councillor Andrea Simpson 
Manchester     Councillor Angeliki Stogia 
Rochdale    Councillor Sara Rowbotham 
Salford     Councillor Paula Boshell 
Trafford     Councillor Dylan Butt 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDENCE: 
 
GMCA Chief Executive  Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer  Liz Treacy 
GMCA – Treasurer   Richard Paver 
Office of the GM Mayor  Kevin Lee 
Bolton     Tony Oakman 
Bury      Pat Jones-Greenhalgh 
Oldham    Ray Ward 
Manchester    Geoff Little 
Rochdale     Steve Rumbelow 
Salford     Jim Taylor 
Stockport     Pam Smith  
Tameside     Steven Pleasant 
Trafford     Joanne Hyde 

Page 90

Agenda Item 10



2 

 

Wigan      Donna Hall  
Manchester Growth Company Mark Hughes 
TfGM     Steve Warrener 
GMCA     Simon Nokes 
GMCA     Julie Connor 
GMCA     Lindsay Dunn 
GMCA      Nicola Ward 
GMCA     Emma Stonier 
 
GMCA 79/18 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence were received and noted from Cllr Anne Marie Watters 
(Bolton), Cllr Jane Black (Bury), Joanne Roney (Manchester), Cllr Barbara Brownridge 
(Oldham), Cllr Alex Ganotis (Stockport), Theresa Grant (Trafford), Cllr Laura Evans 
(Trafford), Cllr Peter Smith (Wigan), Jon Rouse (Greater Manchester Health and 
Social Care Partnership), Jon Lamonte (TfGM) and Ian Hopkins (GMP)  
 
GMCA 80/18 CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 

1. Manchester Arena Attack  
 

The GM Mayor raised the upcoming one year anniversary since the 
Manchester Arena Attack and expressed his sympathies to all those who had 
been affected by this; particularly to those people who had lost family or 
friends. 
 
Sir Richard Leese informed the GMCA about the official arrangements for the 
anniversary which were being led by Manchester City Council. The 
commemorations would begin the weekend before at the City Games and 
the Greater Manchester Run. On May 22nd a memorial service will take place 
at Manchester Cathedral and a national minutes silence will take place at 
2:30pm (during this service). The Memorial Service will also be broadcast live 
from Liverpool, York and Glasgow Cathedrals and will be screened in 
Cathedral Gardens in Manchester City Centre.  
 
An official event will be held on the evening of May 22nd in Albert Square to 
commemorate those lost, recognise the resilience of the city and celebrate 
how people came together following the Manchester Arena Attack. People 
have been asked to submit songs for this event and the chosen songs will be 
performed by a range of musical groups in Albert Square, following this at 
10:31pm the bells in churches and the town hall will be rung. Song lyrics will 
be shone onto St Ann’s Square which will reflect people’s feelings about the 
tragic event.  
 

2. Shop Direct Redundancies  
 

Page 91



3 

 

The GM Mayor noted the recent redundancies recently announced by 
Shopdirect which would affect approximately 2000 people primarily at its 
sites in Oldham, Rochdale and Salford. The Mayor and the GMCA will provide 
as much support as possible for those affected working alongside the Leaders 
of the relevant Councils. An urgent meeting had taken place with ShopDirect 
in which counter proposals had been put forward but this had not been 
successful. ShopDirect had agreed to join a taskforce to look at alternative 
uses for the sites but from these discussions it appeared that ShopDirect had 
not considered other sites within GM and that the decision about its new site 
had already been taken. It was therefore stated that the priority for GM was 
to now support those affected through redundancy. Members of the GMCA 
will continue to be updated regarding this matter as it goes forward.   
 

3. Mayor – first year anniversary  
 

The upcoming one year anniversary of the election of the GM Mayor was 
highlighted and members were informed that there was an event at the 
Sharp Project on 8th May which would celebrate the work and achievements 
over this time.   
 

4. Workers Memorial Day  
 

The GM Mayor drew members attention to Worker’s Memorial Day on 28th 
April which remembered and celebrated the lives of all those who had lost 
their life in the line of work. In particular, in Greater Manchester Steve Hunt, 
Nicola Hughes and Fiona Bone would be remembered and this day would be 
marked in an appropriate way in GM.    

 

GMCA 81/18  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made by any member of the GMCA in relation 
to items on the agenda. 
 
GMCA 82/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA MEETING HELD ON 29 MARCH 2018.  
 
The minutes of the GMCA meeting held 29 March 2018 were submitted for 
consideration.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA meeting held on 29 March 2018 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 
GMCA 83/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA ECONOMY, BUSINESS GROWTH AND SKILLS 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
RESOLVED /- 

Page 92



4 

 

 
That the minutes of the GMCA Economy, Business Growth and Skills Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on the 13 April 2018 be noted. 
 
GMCA 84/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA HOUSING, PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
The scheduled meeting had been cancelled.  
 
GMCA 85/18 MINUTES OF THE GMCA CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on the 18 April 2018 be noted. 

 
GMCA 86/18 GMCA AUDIT COMMITTEE MINUTES   
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA Audit Committee meeting held 12 April 2018 be 
noted. 
 
GMCA 87/18 GM STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AND PERFORMANCE 

MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK   
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester introduced a report which provided an update on 
the development of the two year Greater Manchester Strategy (GMS) 
Implementation Plan and included a copy of the first six monthly GMS Performance 
Dashboard. The GMS Implementation Plan sets out how the ambitions for Greater 
Manchester (GM) are intended to be achieved and includes key milestones for the 
various work programmes. The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees in 
holding GM to account for the implementation of the GMS, and comments and 
actions arising from the discussion of the GMS Implementation Plan at these 
meetings were also highlighted.  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the comments and actions arising from the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees were noted. 
 
2. That the final version of the GMS Implementation Plan was approved. 
 
3. That the first six monthly GMS Performance Dashboard was approved. 
 

Page 93



5 

 

4. That it was noted that a template report was being provided to GM local 
authorities to support them to take the GMS Implementation Plan through 
their local governance structures.  

 
GMCA 88/18 PERSON AND COMMUNITY CENTRED APPROACHES  
 
Members received a presentation and video regarding the development of person 
and community centred approaches to care at Wigan Council. It was highlighted that 
this approach cut across all the priorities in the GMS and that it was crucial to 
delivering the work outlined in the GMS.  
 
Donna Hall, Chief Executive Wigan Council, highlighted the following; 
 

 Reform principles have formed the background of this work including; 
an asset based approach, a place based approach  and an evidence led 
understanding of risk and impact; 

 Funding was secured from the Greater Manchester Health and Social 
Care Partnership (GMHSCP) through the Transformation Fund to carry 
out this work; 

 The programme pioneers an approach based on the strengths and 
assets of local residents/communities and an expansion of the ‘social 
prescribing’ approach; 

 The growing evidence around the impact of the person and 
community centred approach, including a study which found 24% 
lower attendances at A&E and a 28% reduction in need for GP 
services by people who were supported this way; 

 The GM Support Offer which included; bespoke set ups for each 
locality, a roll out of good practice across GM, work to address 
underpinning and enabling factors for such a roll out to be carried out 
across GM including workforce training and IT information sharing; 
and 

 That Wigan had invested £10m in a Community Investment Fund 
which had taken demand out of the system and led to a reduction in 
over-use of the Social Care budget.  

 
Members supported and welcomed this approach and raised the following 
comments and questions; 
 

 That this was a timely reminder of the impact of devolution and what could be 
achieved through integrating services and delivering them in a completely 
different way; 

 Requested that the video shown was shared as this was a real-life, positive 
demonstration of the impact of this initiative which helped to outline the 
concept of a person and community centred approach; 

 That this approach was essential to drive the next steps of the place based 
/reform model to delivery of public services; and 

Page 94



6 

 

 Requested that digital technology was included as one element of the bespoke 
model/offer to districts.  

 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the presentation be welcomed and proposed approaches strongly 

endorsed. 
 
2. That the slides and the video links be shared with members of the GMCA. 
 
GMCA 89/18 BREXIT MONTHLY MONITOR 
 
Councillor Richard Leese, GMCA Portfolio Lead for Business and Economy presented 
a report which updated members on the key economic and policy developments of 
relevance to Greater Manchester in relation to the UK’s decision to leave the 
European Union (EU).  
 
Key items highlighted were; 
 

 That there had been positive indications that companies in GM were looking 
more at opportunities for international trade; 

 That one of the biggest debates was around the customs union with the Irish 
Border and that the final proposal from Government in relation to this was 
still a few months away; and 

 The importance of a plan being in place for GM for post 2019, and particularly 
for post 2021, when current European funding comes to an end. The 
Government has announced that it will replace some funding with a Shared 
Prosperity Fund but the detail of this was not yet known. It was also 
highlighted that European Funding was for a period of 6 years and GM would 
need to make the case for this to continue to ensure long term economic 
planning was able to take place at a local level. 

 
The Mayor supported the importance of the Government providing clarity about the 
Shared Prosperity Fund and noted that the amount of funding received and flexibility 
around funding was key for GM for the development of a local Industrial Strategy. 
The Mayor highlighted a recent report which outlined that the GM economy was the 
fastest growing city region in the UK and that it was crucial that the Government was 
clear about future funding to ensure that growth continues post-Brexit. The recent 
announcement by Government Communications Headquarters (GCHQ) to establish a 
base in the city was also highlighted.  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the content of the April Brexit Monitor were noted.  
 
 

Page 95



7 

 

GMCA 90/18 NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK – CONSULTATION 
PROPOSALS   

 
City Mayor Paul Dennett, GMCA Portfolio Lead for Housing, Planning and 
Homelessness, provided a report which informed the GMCA of the proposed 
changes to the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and outlined the 
proposed GM response. The Government consultation on the revision to the NPPF 
had been published in early March and the consultation was due to end on May 10th 
2018. The Government was also simultaneously consulting on reforms to developer 
contributions (Community Infrastructure Levy and s.106). GMCA intended to 
respond to the 43 detailed questions and to submit a more strategic response 
alongside this.  
 
In the consultation some areas which the GMCA welcomed were highlighted: the 
standardised methodology for the calculation of local housing need; the 
standardised approach to viability assessments and the plan led approach to 
housebuilding. There were also some concerns noted particularly around: the lack of 
alignment with the DEFRA 25 Year Plan; the weakening of protection given to locally 
important wildlife sites; changes to the definition of what can be included within the 
5 year housing supply and the potential to link this to the New Homes Bonus; 
penalising of local authorities for non-delivery of housing even when some of the 
issues may be because of industry and the approach to affordable housing including 
a lack of reference to the definition of ‘affordability’.  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the proposed response to the consultation be approved. 
 
2. That delegated authority be given to the GMCA Chief Executive in consultation 

with the Portfolio Lead for Housing, Planning & Homelessness to sign off the 
final response for submission by the 10 May deadline be approved. 

           
GMCA 91/18 DEVOLVED TRANSPORT FUNDING – HIGHWAYS FUNDING AND 

CONGESTION DEAL  
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester introduced a report which provided an update on 
the amount and allocation of the Devolved Transport Funding for 2018/19 including 
the allocation of the additional pothole funding received in 2017/18. The report also 
set out the proposed funding arrangements for developing and implementing the 
congestion deal in 2018/19. The importance of significant transport investment for 
all modes of transport to achieving the ambitions of GM was highlighted. The 
allocation of funding was welcomed, however it was also emphasised that the 
package of funding received was not enough to meet challenges faced relating to 
transport infrastructure. It was also noted that it was estimated that the need for 
pothole repairs in GM was in excess of the level of grant available.  
 

Page 96



8 

 

Manchester City Council highlighted that prior to 2010 funding for pothole repairs 
had been £12m per annum; as a result of budgets cuts to local authorities this 
funding was now £4m per annum. Residents had informed them, through responses 
to the budget consultation, that road conditions were one of their main concerns. 
The Council had now allocated £100m over the next 5 years to road maintenance. 
Nationally it was noted that the Government spent on average approximately £1.1m 
per year per mile on national road maintenance; for councils this figure was on 
average £21,000 per year.     
 
Members requested that the strategy for Integrated Transport Block (ITB) Funding 
(as referenced in paragraph 2.6) was reviewed in advance of 2019/20 to ensure that 
strategic changes were incorporated in this. Resources allocated to ITB fed into the 
GM Transport Fund (GMTF) and it was stated that the way resources were allocated 
through this could be kept under review.  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the allocations of funding for Highways Maintenance and Incentive 

elements for 2018/19 as part of the Devolved Transport Grant be noted and 
agreed. 

 
2. That the allocation of the Additional Pothole Action funding received in 

2017/18 be noted and agreed. 
 
3. That the allocations of the further pothole funding received for 2018/19 be 

noted and agreed. 
 
4. That the funding mechanism for the payment of the Integrated Transport Block 

Grant, Highways Maintenance Capital Grant and Highways Maintenance 
Efficiency funding  in 2018/19 which will be received through additional 
retained business rates as part of the 100% business rates pilot be noted. 

 
5. That the allocations of the grants of £4.99 million to Manchester City Council 

and £3.621 million to Stockport MBC from the DfT’s National Productivity 
Investment Fund for the schemes set out at Section 5.2 of the report be noted. 

 
6. That approval be given to the inclusion of the 2018/19 funding amounts of 

£1.199 million and £0.869 million respectively in the 2018/19 GMCA Capital 
Programme. 

 
7. That that the allocation of £1.5 million from a combination of the Mayoral 

General Budget and Earnback Reserves, the optimum mix to be determined by 
the GMCA Treasurer, to fund the incremental costs in 2018/19 associated with 
the development and implementation of the Greater Manchester Congestion 
Deal and Plan be approved. 

 

Page 97



9 

 

8. That delegated authority be given to the GMCA Treasurer to determine the 
appropriate allocation of the grants between capital and revenue and to 
update the GMCA Capital Programme, as appropriate, through the Quarterly 
Capital Monitoring reports. 

 
GMCA 92/18 DEVOLUTION OF THE ADULT EDUCATION BUDGET    
 
Councillor Sean Anstee, GMCA Portfolio Lead for Skills, Employment & 
Apprenticeships, presented a report which gave an update on progress towards 
devolution of the Adult Education Budget (AEB). The AEB had originally been due to 
be devolved to GM in 2018/19 but this was deferred due to national delays. The AEB 
allocation of an anticipated £92.2m was now projected to be devolved for the 
2019/20 academic year. During 2018/19 GM will implement a shadow year in 
preparation for full devolution.   
 
Members were informed that the timescales in relation to AEB were challenging as 
there was a need to lay the Orders in Parliament prior to the summer recess in July. 
It was expected that the final Order and supporting documents would be received in 
June for formal consent by the end of June 2018.  
 
Members highlighted that devolution of the AEB was an integral part of achieving 
the ambitions of GM. The crucial role of having a skills policy which supported the 
GM Industrial Strategy was also emphasised.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 
 

2. That, in view of the timescales for receipt of the final Order in June, Chief Legal 
Officers be requested to confirm that necessary delegations are in place to 
enable GM local authorities to provide consent prior to the summer recess of 
parliament. 

 
GMCA 93/18 GOVERNANCE REVIEW  
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester provided a report to members which presented 
arrangements for the carrying out of the Mayor’s Fire and Rescue Function and the 
GMCA Waste Disposal Functions. The report also made recommendations on how 
Mayoral, District and GMCA functions on transport can be delivered. The governance 
review had arisen to ensure that the most effective governance arrangements were 
in place for GM following the election of the Mayor and the creation of the GMCA. 
New arrangements have been introduced to hold the Mayor and the GMCA to 
account through the three Overview and Scrutiny Committees. These involve 45 
Councillors from all GM districts and provide scrutiny functions in relation to all areas 
of the Mayor’s and the GMCA’s work. The review was intended to improve and 
streamline decision making at a local and GM level and to make sure that as many 
elected representatives were involved in the work of the GMCA as possible.  

Page 98



10 

 

 
Members were notified that the Fire Committee was going to be abolished and an 
amendment of the GM Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) Order pursued to 
provide for the Deputy Mayor to exercise delegated authority for Fire and Rescue 
functions. This was proposed to broaden the oversight and alignment of all 999 
services. It was also proposed that the Police and Crime Panel’s remit was extended 
to include Fire and Rescue Services.  
 
Waste functions had now transferred to the GMCA; it was proposed that there was a 
Waste Committee. Two nominations would be invited from the nine authorities 
which shared waste management arrangements. It was suggested that the Waste 
Committee was composed of between 12-15 members, to ensure political 
proportionality and gender balance, and that these appointments were agree at the 
June Combined Authority meeting.  
 
The review into Transport Governance was ongoing and it was requested that 
districts made appointments to the existing Transport for Greater Manchester 
Committee (TfGMC) at their annual meetings for the period May-July 2018 and that 
the appointments included the Transport Portfolio holder in each district.  
 
RESOLVED /- 

1. Fire 

That the Mayor’s decision, following consultation with GMCA members be 
noted as follows: 

 To pursue the amendment of the GM PCC Order to provide for the 
Deputy Mayor PCC to exercise delegable Fire and Rescue functions. 

 To include advice and support on Fire and Rescue issues in so far as 
possible as matters for the Police and Crime Panel to consider.  

 To seek permission to rename the Police and Crime Panel as the Police, 
Crime and Fire Panel. 

 To disestablish the Fire Committee 

 To make the appropriate representation and appointments to the bodies 
set out in Section  

2. Waste Disposal 

That the following proposals be approved: 

 To invite two nominations (except Wigan) from each District for the 

establishment of a Waste Committee as a CA committee from 2nd 

July 2018. 

Page 99



11 

 

 To agree that the Committee will have between 12-15 members to 

ensure political proportionality and gender balance. 

 To agree that the size and Chair of the Committee will be agreed at 

the June CA AGM. 

 To agree the Terms of Reference of the Committee at the June AGM 

which will include delegated authority to progress contract 

negotiations. 

3. Transport 

That the following proposals be approved: 

 To request Districts to consider the functions, size and membership of 

TfGMC as joint committee of the Districts, the CA and the Mayor. 

 To agree to determine the re constitution of TfGMC at the June CA 

AGM. 

 To request Districts to make appointments to the existing TfGMC at 

their annual meetings for the period May-July 2018, and that those 

appointments include the Transport Portfolio holder in each district. 

4. That the portfolio governance and the wider engagement of GM elected 

members be reviewed after the CA AGM in June to be overseen by portfolio 

leads supported by the Monitoring Officer and Assistant Director, Governance 

and Scrutiny. 

5. That it be noted that this report will be considered by the Corporate Issues and 
Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee at their June meeting. 

 
GMCA 94/18 GM SKILLS CAPITAL 2017-2020 PROGRAMME UPDATE   
 
Cllr Sean Anstee, GMCA Portfolio Lead for Skills, Employment & Apprenticeships, 
presented a report which updated members with the latest information related to 
the Skills Capital. Skills Capital investment is a key component of GM’s Growth Deal 
devolved responsibilities and will be key to delivering the skills and employment 
agenda in GM.  
 
The GMCA had previously agreed the Trafford/Stockport College merger. The GMCA 
were asked to approve in principle Bury College’s bid for funding for the 
development of a new build Health Innovation STEM Centre and Tameside College’s 
application for the development of a new build Construction Skills Centre; 
demolition of Condition C estate and refurbishment of existing Condition B estate. 

Page 100



12 

 

Members were informed that there was £43m of Skills Capital remaining for round 2 
applications, to be allocated for the benefit of other areas within GM.  
 
Cllr Rishi Shori, Leader of Bury Council, welcomed the report and investment in an 
area which was a predicted key growth sector in GM.  
 
Cllr Brenda Warrington, Leader of Tameside Council, highlighted the opportunities 
this investment would bring to Tameside.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the update of the whole Skills Capital programme be noted. 

2. That the funding applications from Bury College (£2,250,000) and Tameside 
College (£3,302,453) be given conditional approval and progress to due 
diligence.  

3. That it be agreed to delegate authority to the GMCA Treasurer and GMCA 
Monitoring Officer to review the due diligence information and, subject to 
their satisfactory review and agreement of the due diligence information and 
the overall detailed commercial terms of the transactions, to sign of any 
outstanding conditions, issue final approvals and complete any necessary 
related documentation in respect of the grant at 1 above.  

 
GMCA 95/18 GM INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK APPROVALS   
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester provided a report which sought approval from the 
GMCA for an investment of £3,000k to Broughton House, Salford. The investment 
would be made from recycled funds.  Broughton House had been established in 1916 
as a treatment centre for soldiers after World War One; the building was now in 
need of significant investment and the charity is aiming to transform the site into a 
modern care village for veterans. It is intended that a range of services and support 
will be provided to ex-forces personnel. Additionally Broughton House works to 
reduce rough sleeping and homelessness with ex-armed forces.   
 
The Mayor also highlighted the Armed Forces Summit taking place on 8th May and 
GM’s ambitions to be a national exemplar in the support provided to ex-armed 
forces. It was expected that a range of proposals will be produced following the 
summit.  
 
Members supported the proposal and emphasised the outstanding work which 
Broughton House carried out supporting veterans in Salford and across GM. 
Additionally Broughton House were congratulated on the £8,000k of funding raised 
from private donations and fundraising. The expected creation of 39 jobs from the 
investment and development was also highlighted.  
 

Page 101



13 

 

Overall £100m had been invested in GM businesses through the Investment 
Framework and thanks was expressed to the teams at the Growth Company and the 
GMCA working to drive this valuable support for the GM economy.  
 
RESOLVED /- 

 

1. That the funding application by Broughton House (loan of £3,000k) be given 

conditional approval and progress to due diligence. 

 

2. That authority be delegated to the Combined Authority Treasurer and 

Combined Authority Monitoring Officer to review the due diligence 

information and, subject to their satisfactory review and agreement of the due 

diligence information and the overall detailed commercial terms of the 

transactions, to sign off any outstanding conditions, issue final approvals and 

complete any necessary related documentation in respect of the 

loan/investment at 1 above. 

 
GMCA 97/18 GM HOUSING INVESTMENT FUND APPLICATIONS   
 
Paul Dennett, Salford City Mayor and GMCA Portfolio Lead for Housing, Planning and 
Homelessness, introduced a report which sought approval from the GM Housing 
Investment Loans Fund for a loan to Eccleston Homes Ltd for £3.534m. This would 
take the total value of loans offered from the Fund to £410.7m. The loan will enable 
the construction of 27 residential homes in Temple Road, Bolton and it was noted 
that full planning permission had been granted for the development in November 
2017.  
 
Linda Thomas, Leader of Bolton Council, noted support for the approval of this loan 
and the delivery of homes that it would enable for people in Bolton.  
 
RESOLVED /- 

 

1. That the GM Housing Investment Loans Fund loan in the table below, as 
detailed in this and the accompanying Part B report be approved;  

 

BORROWER  SCHEME  DISTRICT  LOAN  

Eccleston 
Homes Ltd 

Temple 
Road 

Bolton £3.534m 

 

2. That Manchester City Council be recommended that it approves the above and 
prepares and effects the necessary legal agreements in accordance with its 
approved internal processes. 

 
 
 
 

Page 102



14 

 

GMCA 97/18 THE GROWTH COMPANY BUSINESS PLAN   
 
Councillor Richard Leese, GMCA Portfolio Lead for Business and Economy, provided a 
report which presented the Growth Company Business Plan for the 2018-19 financial 
year. Thanks were noted to the Board of the Growth Company and the Advisory 
Panel for the commitment and time spent in assisting the delivery of GM’s 
ambitions. The team at the Growth Company were also thanked for their work and 
the support provided to the GM economy.  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the Growth Company 2018-19 Business Plan be endorsed. 
 
GMCA 98/18 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and 
public should be excluded from the meeting for the following items on business on 
the grounds that this involves the likely disclosure of exempt information, as set out 
in paragraph 3, Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 
GMCA 99/18 GM SKILLS CAPITAL 2017-20 PROGRAMME UPDATE  
 
CLERK’S NOTE: This item was considered in support of the Part A GM Skills Capital 
2017-2020 Programme Update (minute 94/18 refers). 
 
GMCA 100/18 GM INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK APPROVALS  
 
CLERK’S NOTE: This item was considered in support of the Part A GM Investment 
Framework Approvals (minute 95/18 refers). 

 
GMCA 101/18 GM HOUSING INVESTMENT FUND APPLICATIONS   
 
CLERK’S NOTE: This item was considered in support of the Part A GM Housing 
Investment Loan Fund – Investment Approval Recommendation (minute 96/18 
refers). 
 
GMCA 102/18 GROWTH COMPANY BUSINESS PLAN   
 
CLERK’S NOTE: This item was considered in support of the Part A Growth Company 
Business Plan (minute 97/18 refers). 
 
 
 
 

Page 103



15 

 

GMCA 103/18 CAPITAL INVESTMENT FOR REINSTATEMENT OF RAIKES LANE FROM 
WASTE FACILITY   

 
Members received a report which requested approval of capital expenditure by 
GMCA of £7.3m for the reinstatement of the Raikes Lane Energy from Waste facility, 
Bolton. It was noted that as the owner of the asset the GMCA had to initially incur 
the capital cost and recover expenditure from the insurers subsequently. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the increase of the GMCA capital budget by £7.3 million be approved. 
 
2. That delegated authority be given to the Executive Director Waste and 

Resources,  in Consultation with the Lead Member for Waste (Councillor Sean 
Anstee), Lead Chief Executive (Eamonn Boylan) and the GMCA Treasurer,  to 
place orders through the run off contract with Viridor Waste (Greater 
Manchester) Ltd (VWGM) up to a value of £7.3m to carry out the 
reinstatement works relating to Phase 1 and 2 of Raikes Lane; and 

 
3. That it be noted that the decision is an urgent key decision and is exempted 

from call in under Rule 17 Access to Information Procedure Rules. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104



16 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



1 

 

9 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED 

AUTHORITY, HELD ON FRIDAY 25 MAY 2018 
AT MANCHESTER TOWN HALL. 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor  Andy Burnham 
Deputy Mayor    Baroness Beverley Hughes  
(Policing and Crime) 
Bolton      Councillor Linda Thomas 
Bury      Councillor Rishi Shori 
Manchester     Councillor Nigel Murphy 
Oldham    Councillor Sean Fielding 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford     City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport     Councillor Alex Ganotis 
Tameside     Councillor Brenda Warrington 
Trafford     Councillor Andrew Western 
Wigan      Councillor David Molyneux 
 
OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
TfGMC     Councillor Guy Harkin 
Manchester     Councillor Angeliki Stogia 
Rochdale    Councillor Sara Rowbotham 
Stockport    Councillor Wendy Wild 
Wigan     Councillor Jenny Bullen 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
GMCA Chief Executive  Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA – deputy Chief Executive Andrew Lightfoot 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer  Liz Treacy 
GMCA – Treasurer   Richard Paver 
Office of the GM Mayor  Kevin Lee 
 
Bolton     Tony Oakman 
Bury      Pat Jones-Greenhalgh 
Oldham    Carolyn Wilkins 
Manchester    Joanne Roney 
Rochdale     Steve Rumbelow 
Salford     Jim Taylor 
Stockport     Pam Smith  
Tameside     Sandra Stewart 
Trafford     Joanne Hyde 

Page 106



2 

 

Wigan      Alison McKenzie-Folan 
Manchester Growth Company Mark Hughes 
TfGM     Steve Warrener 
GMP     Ian Piling 
GMFRS     Dawn Docx 
GMCA     Simon Nokes 
GMCA     Julie Connor 
GMCA     Sylvia Welsh 
GMCA     Lindsay Dunn 
GMCA      Nicola Ward 
 
GMCA 104/18 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence were received and noted from Cllr Richard Leese 
(Manchester), Cllr Andrea Simpson (Bury), Theresa Grant (Trafford), Steven Pleasant 
(Tameside), Cllr Laura Evans (Trafford), Donna Hall (Wigan), Jon Rouse (Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership), Jon Lamonte (TfGM) and Ian 
Hopkins (GMP)  
 
GMCA 105/18 CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 

1. GM Leaders 
 

On behalf of all members, the GM Mayor placed on record his thanks to the 
Leaders who had resigned since the last meeting of the Combined Authority. 
The former Leader of Oldham Council, Councillor Jean Stretton, the former 
Leader of Trafford, Councillor Sean Anstee and Lord Peter Smith, the former 
Leader of Wigan. The important contribution made by all three to the work of 
the Combined Authority was acknowledged and the Mayor thanked them for 
their personal support. It was noted that Lord Peter Smith, former Chair of 
AGMA would continue in his role as Chair of the GM Health and Care Board. 
 
The Chair welcomed three new Leaders, as members of the GMCA, Councillor 
Sean Fielding, Leader of Oldham, Councillor Andrew Western, Leader of 
Trafford and Councillor David Molyneux, Leader of Wigan, to their first 
Combined Authority meeting. 
 

2. Manchester Arena Attack Anniversary 
 

The Mayor acknowledged the events that had taken place in the City during 
the week to commemorate the one year anniversary of the attack at 
Manchester Arena. Although it had been recognised that the 22 May had 
been a difficult day, tributes and events had been handled with great dignity, 
empathy and had portrayed Manchester to the world as place of humanity, 
solidarity and diversity. The families of the twenty two victims would forever 
be part of Manchester.  
 

Page 107



3 

 

Sir Richard Leese, Leader, Joanne Roney, Chief Executive, Kate Brown and the 
supporting team at Manchester City Council were thanked on behalf of the 
GMCA for the arrangement and management of the programme of events 
which took place on 22 May, in recognition of the Anniversary of the 
Manchester Arena Attack. 
 
Thanks were also conveyed to the Bishop and the Dean and staff at 
Manchester Cathedral, Rose Marley and Sharp Futures for their role in the 
One Voice Event, volunteers who helped with ‘Trees of Hope’ throughout the 
City Centre and everyone who attended the event in Albert Square. 

 
3. Northern Rail Network Performance 

 
The GM Mayor drew member’s attention to the ongoing situation on the rail 
network and the unacceptable performance of Northern Rail. Delays, 
cancellations, overcrowding, along with recent timetable changes, had 
resulted in a progressively intolerable situation for rail passengers in the 
North West. Along with the Mayor for the Liverpool City Region, the GM 
Mayor had made representations with other northern leaders to the 
Secretary of State for Transport and Transport for the North Board and he 
provided the GMCA with an update on the details of those exchanges. The 
Mayor had made it known from the outset in those conversations, that the 
situation should never have been allowed to get as bad as it had before the 
Government acknowledged that there was a problem. He also stipulated that 
it was his belief that problems on the rail network in London and the South 
East were more readily attended to than those that occurred, sometimes of a 
worse nature, in the North of England. The Mayor pledged to use his voice to 
make representations on behalf of the travelling public of GM that going 
forward this would no longer continue.  
 
A further four points, which were topics of disagreement with the 
Government were outlined; 
 
These included; 
 

 There was no shared analysis or agreement of what the issues were 
that were affecting Northern Rail. It was acknowledged that Network 
Rail and their failure to deliver promised improvements on the 
Manchester to Bolton line and Blackpool had contributed to the 
current chaos. However, it was the view of the Mayor and the 
Liverpool City Mayor, that this, along with the introduction of the new 
timetable was not the root cause. It was the opinion that endemic 
staffing issues on Northern Rail, linked to the management culture of 
the organisation had exacerbated the issues described; 

 The agreed action plan, should be publicised with clear deadlines 
alongside the actions, so the public could see what was being done 
and hold the company to account. Clarity was needed so that if 

Page 108



4 

 

services were not going to be provided, then information was made 
available in order to avoid the chaos of last minute cancellations; 

 There were a large number of outstanding compensation claims made 
by GM residents and these would be required to be answered within 
a firm deadline. It was the view of the Mayor, that a broader 
compensation offer for regular travellers and season ticket holders 
who have faced disruption over a long period of time, should be 
introduced  and paid for out fines issued to Arriva Trains; 

 If Northern Rail fail to stick to recovery plan as agreed then a process 
should be initiated for the removal of the franchise.  

 
Members of the GMCA were invited to raise concerns from their boroughs 
with regard to the impact the performance was having on their residents. 
Councillor Sara Rowbotham (Rochdale) expressed her concern with the 
apparent disregard of the shareholders, owners and senior company 
executives of the company for the residents of Rochdale, Greater Manchester 
and the North West. An immediate call for improvement was made. 

 
Councillor Linda Thomas (Bolton), described some of the ongoing problems 
experienced by the residents of Bolton, which included insufficient trains and 
carriages, dirty trains and poor customer relations. The recent electrification 
of the line had an effect on the livelihoods of many farmers and commuters 
meaning many felt that they were not important to the rail company. She 
agreed with the Mayor that she felt rail users in the north were invisible, 
despite continued pressure from MPs across the North West. 

 
Councillor Alex Ganotis (Stockport) explained how the introduction of the 
new timetable for the residents of Stockport had proved chaotic and resulted 
in an unacceptable experience for rail users across the network. He explained 
the practical issues as a result of the new timetables which had resulted in a 
reduction in services, and in particular, a bunching of services at peak times. 
This had caused huge inconveniences for commuters and affected work 
patterns, childcare arrangements and pupils using the rail network. He 
believed that the new timetable had been introduced with no consideration 
for commuters. Northern Rail had also confirmed that the reason for the 
reductions and bunching of services was due to the increased capacity into 
and out of Piccadilly train station, especially due to an increase in Trans 
Pennine Express services. It was reported that operators have had to bid for 
platform slots and the outcome of the bidding process had resulted in 
timetable changes. He called for more information and transparency in the 
bidding process. Collective responsibility to address the impact of changes on 
the residents of Stockport, GM and the North West would be required. 

 
Councillor Andrew Western (Trafford) echoed the comments made by the 
Mayor and colleagues with regards to the Manchester to Liverpool line 
through Urmston. He explained that the residents of Trafford had suffered 
from significantly overcrowded trains and delays and cancellations had 

Page 109



5 

 

impacted on the public both personally and professionally. He called for 
pressure on the Government to intervene in the rail issues affecting the 
Northern Powerhouse and the unacceptable treatment of commuters. 

 
Councillor David Molyneux, (Wigan Council) provided a personal recollection 
of a train journey to Manchester he had experienced on 27th April 2018. He 
explained the overcrowded conditions on a warm day which had resulted in 
increased temperatures within the train carriages which were particularly 
concerning for younger passengers. This had resulted in genuine safety 
concerns and lead to some passengers coming close to losing their tempers. 
The front line staff from Northern Rail were considered to be put in extremely 
difficult and challenging situations and Councillor Molyneux stated that rail 
service in GM needed improvement. 
 
Councillor Brenda Warrington (Tameside) reiterated the sentiments of 
colleagues with regards to overcrowding and the manner in which customers 
were treated. It was considered an increasingly challenging situation to 
persuade commuters to contribute to the improvement in air quality by 
choosing public transport as opposed to travelling by car.  Members were 
provided with details of her personal experience of the train journey into 
Manchester that morning. 

 
Councillor Angelicki Stogia (Manchester) explained that it was important that 
the feelings of the people travelling by train across GM were acknowledged. 
The appalling situation faced by commuters in train stations in the city centre 
was leaving people to feel angry, stressed, frustrated, disappointed, anxious 
and let down. The real risks of people losing their jobs as a result of the 
situation called for pressure to be applied on behalf of the residents of 
Greater Manchester. Northern Rail were described as an unaccountable and 
inept company that were required to be held to account. Councillor Stogia 
expressed her thanks to the Mayor for outlining the points that had been 
discussed with the Minister and he was urged to continue to share 
information with the public.  
 
The Mayor thanked members for their contributions and acknowledged the 
strength of opinion that had been expressed. Given the seriousness of the 
issues and intensity of feelings, the Mayor proposed that an objective 
assessment of the performance of Northern Rail and Network Rail be 
undertaken by TfGM and Transport for the North. This would be provided to 
the June meeting of the GMCA to inform the next steps to be taken by 
Transport for the North and the GMCA in addressing the current performance 
issues. 
 

4. Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF) 
 
Colleagues were reminded that the GMCA had previously decided to publish 
the revised GMSF in June 2018. Due to the changes in the membership of the 

Page 110



6 

 

GMCA and the results of local elections across Greater Manchester, it was 
proposed to defer the submission of the GMSF to the 29 July meeting of the 
GMCA. It was acknowledged that public consultation would commence 
during the school summer holidays for a three month period concluding mid-
October 2018. 
 
Councillor Andrew Western welcomed the delay and highlighted that the 
change in political administration in Trafford would result in a different 
perspective with particular regard to land allocated for house building in 
Flixton.   
 

RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That it be noted that Councillor Jean Stretton, the former Leader of Oldham, 

Councillor Sean Anstee, the former Leader of Trafford and Lord Peter Smith the 
former leader of Wigan had resigned as members of the GMCA, and that it be 
placed on record that members recognise and appreciate that all three had 
made a major contribution to the work of the GMCA.  In particular 
acknowledging the work of Lord Peter Smith as the long standing Chair of 
AGMA, leading to the establishment of the GMCA and as Chair of the GMCA 
over a significant length of time. That it be noted that Lord Peter Smith will 
continue as Chair of the Health & Care Board and Portfolio Lead for Health and 
Care. 
 

2. That the appointment of Councillor Sean Fielding, Leader of Oldham, Councillor 
Andrew Western, Leader of Trafford and Councillor David Molyneux, Leader of 
Wigan to the GMCA be noted and that they be welcomed to their first meeting 
as members of the GMCA. 
 

3. That Sir Richard Leese, Leader, Joanne Roney, Chief Executive, Kate Brown and 
the supporting team at Manchester City Council be thanked on behalf of the 
GMCA for the arrangement and management of the programme of events 
which took place on 22 May, in recognition of the Anniversary of the 
Manchester Arena Attack. 
 

4. That thanks also be convey to the Bishop and the Dean and staff at Manchester 
Cathedral, Rose Marley and Sharp Futures for the role in the One Voice Event, 
volunteers who helped with ‘Trees of Hope’ throughout the City Centre and 
everyone who attended the event in Albert Square. 
 

5. That an objective assessment of the performance of Northern Rail and Network 
Rail be undertaken by TfGM and Transport for the North for the following 
month for submission  to the June meeting of the GMCA to inform the next 
steps to be taken by Transport for the North and the GMCA in addressing the 
current performance issues.  
 

Page 111



7 

 

6. That it be agreed that the submission of the Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework be deferred to the 29 July meeting of the GMCA, due to the changes 
in the membership of the GMCA and the results of local elections across Greater 
Manchester, acknowledging that the public consultation will commence during 
the school summer holidays for a three month period concluding mid-October 
2018. 

   
GMCA 106/18  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made by any member of the GMCA in relation 
to items on the agenda. 
 
GMCA 107/18  MINUTES OF THE GMCA MEETING HELD ON 27 APRIL 2018.  
 
The minutes of the GMCA meeting held 27 April 2018 were submitted for 
consideration.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA meeting held on 27 April 2018 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 
GMCA 108/18 MINUTES OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER LOCAL ENTERPRISE 

PARTNERSHIP HELD ON 14 MAY 2018 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the Greater Manchester Local Enterprise Partnership held on the 
14 May 2018 be noted. 
 
GMCA 109/18 GMCA APPOINTMENTS TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEES 
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester introduced a report which requested that 
members agree the appointments to the GMCA’s three scrutiny committees and the 
substitute’s pool.   
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

1. That appointments to the GMCA’s 3 Overview & Scrutiny Committees, (15 
members each) following nominations received from the constituent councils 
be approved as detailed below. That it be noted that political balance 
requirements have been met: 11 Labour, 3 Conservatives and 1 Liberal 
Democrat per Committee. 

 
 

Page 112



8 

 

ECONOMY, BUSINESS GROWTH & SKILLS 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 

1 Bolton Susan Haworth           Labour 

2 Bury Mary Whitby          Labour 
3 Manchester Luke Raikes                       Labour 

4 Oldham Barbara Brownridge        Labour 
5 Rochdale tbc            Labour 

6 Salford Kate Lewis           Labour 

7 Stockport Jude Wells            Labour 

8 Tameside Yvonne Cartey          Labour 

9 Trafford Barry Brotherton          Labour 

10 Wigan Charles Rigby          Labour 

11 Stockport Mark Hunter               Liberal Democrat 

12 Rochdale Mike Holly                       Conservative 

13 Salford Karen Garrido          Conservative 

14 Bury Robert Caserta          Conservative 

15 Oldham Chris Goodwin                 Labour 
 

 

HOUSING, PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 

1 Bolton Shamim Abdullah  Labour 

2 Bury Catherine Preston           Labour 
3 Manchester  James Wilson    Labour 

4 Oldham James Larkin  Labour 
5 Rochdale Linda Robinson  Labour 

6 Salford Stuart Dickman  Labour 

7 Stockport Laura Booth  Labour 

8 Tameside Mike Glover  Labour 

9 Trafford Graham Whitham  Labour 

10 Wigan Lynne Holland  Labour 

11 Stockport Lisa Smart                    Liberal Democrat 

12 Bolton Andrew Morgan  Conservative 

13 Wigan Michael Winstanley Conservative 

14 Bury Dorothy Gunther  Conservative 

15 Manchester  Paula Sadler  Labour 
 

 

Page 113



9 

 

CORPORATE ISSUES & REFORM 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 

   

1 Bolton Hamid Khurram  Labour  

2 Bury Stella Smith   Labour 
3 Mancheste

r 
Mary Watson  Labour 

4 Oldham Colin McLaren  Labour 
5 Rochdale Peter Malcom  Labour 

6 Salford David Jolley   Labour 

7 Stockport Yvonne Guariento  Labour 

8 Tameside Gill Peet   Labour 

9 Trafford Ann Duffield  Labour 

10 Wigan Joanne Marshall  Labour 

11 Bury Tim Pickstone              Liberal Democrat 

12 Trafford Nathan Evans  Conservative 

13 Stockport Linda Holt     Conservative 

14 Tameside John Bell    Conservative 

15 Mancheste
r 

Annette Wright  Labour 

 
2. That approval be given to the appointment of up to 16 members to the GMCA 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee substitutes pool. That the appointments 
detailed below be approved, noting that a further 3 nominations are to be 
confirmed in June.  
 

 LABOUR CONSERVATIVE LIBERAL 
DEMOCRAT 

 Bolton Kevin McKeon David Greenhalgh  

 Bury 

Waiting for 1 
further 
nomination to be 
confirmed 

  

 Manchester 
 

 John Leech  

 Oldham To be confirmed  Hazel Gloster  

 Rochdale 
 

Danny Meredith 
Ray Dutton 

 
 

Ann Stott  

 Salford Tanya Burch 
To be 
confirmed 

 

 Stockport    

Page 114



10 

 

 
GMCA 110/18  ROUGH SLEEPERS UPDATE 
 
The Rough Sleepers Update report was withdrawn and it was noted that the issue 
would be considered at the next meeting of the GMCA Reform Board, with a view to 
submitting an update to the 29 June meeting of the GMCA. 
 
GMCA 111/18 GREATER MANCHESTER CYCLING & WALKING GOVERNANCE 

UPDATE   
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester introduced a report which set out the governance 
proposals for allocating the Transforming Cities funding to cycling and walking 
focused schemes.  
 
As set out in the Autumn 2017 Budget, Greater Manchester had been awarded 
capital funding of £243m from the Transforming Cities Fund. Subsequent to the 
announcement, a letter was received by the Mayor, with a follow up letter to the 
GMCA (attached at Appendix 1) confirming that the allocation would be treated as 
part of the Greater Manchester “single pot” and, therefore, Government expected 
that the single pot assurance framework would follow to ensure that the value for 
money of spending decisions were assessed and considered consistently. DfT had 
also asked GMCA to publish a delivery plan for the Fund and to prepare annual 
performance statements against that plan. 
 
The report set out proposals to ensure that the governance and management of the 
Challenge Fund would facilitate the development and delivery of schemes and 
comply with the overarching GMCA Single Pot Assurance Framework in terms of: 
governance of decision making, accountability for public money, assurance, 
prioritisation and value for money. 
 
Members were informed that the Cycling and Walking Commissioner, Chris 
Boardman would present the results of the prioritised programme and scheme 
pipeline to the meeting of the GMCA in June. In support of the proposals, it was 
suggested that membership of the Cycling and Walking Delivery Board should 
include representatives from health and/or public health services and representative 
users of the schemes, including children and young people and people with physical 
and sensory impairments, in recognition of the wider agenda beyond transport 
improvements, including the improvement of the health of the population and 
improving air quality. The Mayor recommended that the Cycling and Walking 
Commissioner meet with a number of individuals who attended the Mayor’s 
Question Time on 24 May, to discuss the experiences of disabled people in getting 
around Greater Manchester. 

 Tameside Adrian Pearce Ruth Welsh 
 
 

 Trafford 
 

Amy Whyte Bernard Sharp  

 Wigan Fred Walker James Grundy  

Page 115



11 

 

 
In discussing the report, clarity on who would be responsible for the development of 
the business case for schemes, whether it be Local Authorities or TfGM or a 
combination, together with details of available support was requested. 
 
The importance of creating safe routes for all modes of travel was highlighted along 
with the emphasis on walking as an alternative to driving for journeys of less than 
one kilometre. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the proposed governance arrangements, including for the allocation of 

funding and the approval of business cases in relation to allocating Transforming 
Cities funding (TCF) to cycling and walking focused schemes be approved. 
 

2. That the prioritisation framework against which schemes will be assessed be 
approved. 
 

3. That progress on scheme development be noted and it be agreed that delivery 
will be reported through regular updates to GMCA and via the quarterly GMCA 
Capital Monitoring reports. 

 
4. That it be noted that Chris Boardman, Walking and Cycling Commissioner, would 

be presenting an update on the progress of the cycling and walking agenda at the 
29 June meeting of the GMCA. 
 

5. That the report to be considered by the GMCA on 29 June consider a number of 
issues including: 
 

 extending the composition of the Cycling and Walking Delivery Board to 
include representatives from health and/or public health services and 
representative users of the schemes, including children and young people 
and people with physical and sensory impairments, in recognition of the 
wider agenda beyond transport improvements, including the improvement of 
the health of the population and improving air quality 

 provide clarity on who would be responsible for developing the business case 
for schemes; local authorities or TfGM or a combination, together with 
details of available support 

 
6. That the Walking and Cycling Commissioner be encouraged to meet with a 

number of individuals who attended the Mayor’s Question Time on 24 May to 
discuss the experiences of disabled people in getting around Greater 
Manchester. 

 
 
 

Page 116



12 

 

GMCA 112/18 INTRODUCTION OF ZONAL FARES STRUCTURE ON THE 
METROLINK NETWORK   

 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester introduced a report which detailed a proposal by 
TfGM to introduce a zonal fare structure on the Metrolink network in early 2019. The 
report set out the policy drivers, customer benefits of the proposed change, and 
requested approval, subject to a public engagement exercise in late May/ early June 
and subsequent report to the GMCA.  
 
Members welcomed the proposed introduction of a zonal fare structure on the 
Metrolink network and suggested it would increase flexibility and simplify the system 
for passengers, which would have a positive impact on the tourist economy in 
Greater Manchester. It was recognised in the report that there was a potential minor 
adverse impact of very short journeys becoming more expensive and it was 
confirmed that the impact of any change would be taken into consideration as part 
of the proposed public engagement exercise which would run from 1 to 17 June 
2018. On behalf of the GMCA, the Mayor thanked colleagues in TfGM for the pace of 
the thorough work undertaken on a potentially complicated proposal.  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the proposal to introduce a zonal fare structure on the Metrolink network in 

early 2019 be approved. 
 

2. That the policy drivers and customer benefits of the proposed change be noted.  
 

3. That the financial and demand assessment associated with the proposal and the 
assumed mitigation of risks be noted. 
 

4. That it be noted that some of the proposed changes to the fares structure will 
impact on short journeys and comments would be considered as part of the 
proposed public engagement exercise. 
 

5. That it be noted that the final zonal fare structure will be subject to a public 
engagement exercise from 1 – 17 June 2018. 
 

6. That it be noted that the approval of the final zonal fare structure will be subject 
to a subsequent report to the GMCA on 27 July 2018. 

 
GMCA 113/18   BUS REFORM OBJECTIVES UPDATE 
 
The Chair introduced a report which updated members on the long-term objectives 
for the bus network in Greater Manchester.  
 
It was highlighted that the overarching objective was to improve the network and 
achieve network integration in order to be as efficient and accessible as possible. It 
was proposed that the bus network would benefit from a simplified and integrated 

Page 117



13 

 

ticketing system covering all buses and also journeys using more than one mode of 
transport within Greater Manchester. Fares should offer value for money to 
customers, with smart ticketing introduced as soon as possible for travel across the 
whole bus network and for travel across different modes.  
 
As well as simplified fares and ticketing, the bus network should be as easy to use as 
possible for passengers and potential passengers, and provide a positive journey 
experience. Buses should be accessible, particularly for mobility impaired 
passengers, and there should be aids for partially sighted or blind customers to help 
them navigate the network. It was recognised that the bus network should be 
delivering optimal value for money in terms of service to Greater Manchester. 
 
It was highlighted that the GMCA would be undertaking bus reform to reflect the GM 
priorities. The bus operators had requested to work in partnership and the Mayor 
challenged them to demonstrate how the proposed partnership approach would 
work, including how it could support affordable travel for young people, in particular 
free travel for 16-18 year olds. 

 

It was proposed that ‘comprehensive access’ to the public transport network needed 
to ensure that there was a comprehensive bus network outside of the M60 as well 
good orbital connectivity around Greater Manchester and beyond the M60 
boundary. 

 
Each Local Authority was requested to provide the Mayor with local intelligence 
regarding gaps in the local bus network to inform further discussions with bus 
operators through partnership working. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

1. That the Mayor continue his conversations with bus operators, challenging 

them to demonstrate how the proposed partnership approach will work 

including how the approach can support, affordable travel for young people, 

in particular free travel for 16-18 year olds. 

 

2. That ‘comprehensive access’ to the public transport network needs to ensure 

that there is also a comprehensive bus network outside of the M60 as well 

good orbital connectivity around Greater Manchester and beyond the M60 

boundary. 

 

3. That all Local Authorities provide the Mayor with local intelligence regarding 

gaps in the local bus network to inform further discussions with bus 

operators. 

 

4. That the objectives set out in the report be endorsed. 
 

Page 118



14 

 

 
GMCA 114/18   RAIL STATION PARTNERSHIP UPDATE 
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester presented a report which provided an update on 
the progress to date and proposed next steps in relation to the Case for Change: 
GMCA Rail Station Transfer.   
 
The Case for Change recommended the full transfer of rail station responsibility to 
the GMCA over a long-term period. However, in light of the feedback received from 
the Secretary of State for Transport, Chris Grayling, TfGM had developed alternative 
proposals to test working in partnership with operators and other industry 
stakeholders at a number of GM rail stations.  The GMCA Transport Revenue Budget 
2018/19 report presented to the GMCA in January 2018, granted approval for a 
drawdown of £0.5m to progress proposals for the rail station partnership and work 
undertaken to date and proposed workstreams were detailed within the report. 
 
It was noted that whilst enabling work was progressing on the workstreams, formal 
agreement on a ‘partnership approach’ by all parties was still required. This would 
be progressed with industry stakeholders over the forthcoming months. In parallel, 
further discussions would be held with the Department for Transport (DfT) and 
London Continental Railways (LCR) regarding the proposed ‘Development and 
Community Fund’. It was proposed to present a further report to Leaders in the late 
summer. 
 
In offering support for the proposals, it was suggested that a further report which 
analysed how partnerships were progressing be presented to the meeting of the 
GMCA in September 2018.  
 
Members discussed the importance to develop a strategic approach to the release of 
land in order to deliver on the GMSF and provide brownfield development first. It 
was suggested that the government would need to apply pressure to Network Rail to 
release their assets of brownfield land to support housing development and the 
ambitions to regenerate town centres. It was considered critical that the DfT and 
Network Rail as partners work together with the Combined Authority on the one 
public estate programme in GM. 
 
The partnership approach instead of the transfer of rail stations to the Combined 
Authority recommended by the Secretary of State for Transport was described as 
disappointing. Members highlighted the prolonged lack of investment in rail stations 
and the fact that many in Greater Manchester were not Disability and Discrimination 
Act 1995 compliant and did not support a modal shift to the use of public transport. 
Councillor Sean Fielding, (Oldham) highlighted that Greenfield station in Oldham had 
limited step free access and the issue was subject to notice of motion annually at the 
Oldham Council meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 119



15 

 

RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the report and the national political environment which has a preference for 

alliancing and partnerships rather than the transfer of full responsibility and 
ownership for rail assets be noted. 
 

2. That the proposals to work with the rail industry to determine the extent to 
which the proposals around a partnership approach in relation to rail assets can 
deliver acceptable benefits to Greater Manchester be noted and endorsed. 
 

3. That it be agreed to develop and embed formal governance with rail industry 
partners around stations development and delivery in Greater Manchester.  
 

4. That the continuation of the workstreams and enabling projects set out in the 
report that can be delivered within the £0.5 million of funding approved by 
GMCA as part of the Transport Budget in January 2018 be approved. 
 

5. That the potential for Government to assist with facilitating the release of 
brownfield land within the ownership of Network Rail be progressed as part of 
the discussions on Greater Manchester’s Housing deal. 
 

6. That an update on Rail Station Partnerships be submitted to the GMCA in 
September 2018. 

 
GMCA 115/18 MANCHESTER AND PENNINE RESILIENCE – OPTIONS FOR THE 

HAWESWATER AQUEDUCT 
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester introduced a report which set out the preferred 
option to improve the resilience of the water supply to Greater Manchester via the 
Haweswater aqueduct.  
 
It was noted that the GMCA had received an approach from Untied Utilities (UU) 
with regard to improvements to the single largest water supply into Greater 
Manchester. Members were asked to support the business case and in doing so they 
encouraged UU to engage with the public to obtain a long term preferred option that 
provided a sustainable solution to the residents and businesses in Greater 
Manchester. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the report and the key issues and options identified – (sections 2, 3 and 4) 

be noted.  
 

2. That it be agreed to write to United Utilities by 31st May to confirm the 
engagement that they have undertaken with GMCA and to provide support to 
the progression of a preferred option that secures a long term and sustainable 
solution for residents and businesses in GM. 

Page 120



16 

 

           
GMCA 116/18  BREXIT MONTHLY MONITOR  
 
Councillor Nigel Murphy, Manchester CC introduced a report which updated 
members on the key economic and policy developments of relevance to Greater 
Manchester in relation to the UK’s decision to leave the European Union (EU).  
 
Key items highlighted were; 
 

 That UK GDP growth was down, furthermore, the Bank of England had 
announced that interest rates were being kept down in light of lower 
projections for GDP growth in 2018. 

 The negative effect on employment in the region had seen unemployment 
rise for a third consecutive month which placed unemployment higher than 
at pre-referendum levels. 

 
The Mayor highlighted that the position with regard to unemployment was troubling 
and suggested that the situation be closely monitored as the Government 
approached the conclusion of negotiations, in particular regard to the Customs 
Union. It was noted that a higher proportion of GM exports go to the EU than the 
British average which ultimately would have a bigger impact on GM than other parts 
of the country. It was expected that there would be further need to debate options 
and feed into vote in Parliament later in the year. 
 
A member questioned whether the introduction of Universal Credit had any effect 
on the way figures were collated and consequently impacted on the increased 
numbers unemployed. It was agreed that further work would be carried out in this 
regard and reported back to the next meeting. The Mayor suggested that a broader 
report on the implementation and effects of the introduction of Universal Credit, 
which would include issues in relation to family poverty, unemployment and 
homelessness should be presented at the next meeting of the GMCA. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the Brexit Monthly Monitor (May 2018) be noted. 

 
2. That Officers be requested to submit a report to the GMCA on 29 June providing 

an update on the impact of Universal Credit broadly across Greater Manchester, 
including the impact on the number of unemployed residents and family poverty 
etc. 

 
GMCA 117/18  GMCA CAPITAL OUTTURN 2017/18    
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester introduced a report which informed members of 
the GMCA capital outturn for 2017/18.   
 

Page 121



17 

 

It was clarified that the GMCA had set a three year forward budget which had been 
approved in January 2018 and the report presented the outturn for the last financial 
year. A further update on the monitoring would be provided to the meeting in July 
which would include the forward forecast. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the 2017/18 outturn capital expenditure compared to the forecast position 
presented to GMCA in January 2018 be noted. 
 
GMCA 118/18  GMCA REVENUE OUTTURN 2017/18  
 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester introduced a report which set out the revenue 
outturn for 2017/18 and requested members note the position on reserves. The 
report sought approval of the transfer of funds to earmarked reserves.   
 
Eamonn Boylan, GMCA Chief Executive, offered Leaders reassurance that any 
decisions to spend any reserves, not already committed to the GMCA, would be 
submitted to the GMCA for approval. Furthermore, it was acknowledged that a 
process, to determine the amount of reserves that may be available for return to 
Local Authorities, be considered by the GMCA as soon as possible. 
 
Salford City Mayor Paul Dennett highlighted the importance for districts to receive 
clarity with regards to the return of reserves early in order to assist with the budget 
setting process and help to mitigate against the impact of austerity and government 
cuts to continue to provide services for the most vulnerable communities. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the GMCA Economic Development and Regeneration revenue outturn 

position for 2017/18, which shows a favourable position of £0.576 million after 
transfers to earmarked reserves be noted. 

 
2. That the contribution to earmarked Economic Regeneration and Development 

reserves be approved. 
 

3. That proposals to spend any reserves which have not already been committed 
will be submitted to the GMCA for approval and that a process will be 
developed quickly, in consultation with Local Authority Treasurers, to determine 
how much of the reserves may be available for return to Local Authorities, to be 
considered by the GMCA as quickly as possible. 
 

4. That the GMCA transport revenue outturn position for 2017/18 is in line with 
budget after transfers to earmarked reserves be noted. 
 

5. That the contribution to earmarked transport reserves be approved.   
 

Page 122



18 

 

6. That the GM Fire and Rescue Service outturn position for 2017/18 which shows 
a favourable position of £0.396 million after transfers to earmarked reserves be 
noted. 
 

7. That the TfGM revenue position for 2017/18, in line with budget be noted. 
 

8. That it be noted that the final outturn position is subject to the completion of 
the annual external audit to be finalised by 31 July 2018, which will be reported 
to the GMCA Audit Committee at its meeting in July. 
 

9. That it be noted that the appropriate adjustments to the 2018/19 budget will be 
brought forward in due course. 
 

GMCA 119/18 GREATER MANCHESTER INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK PROJECT 
UPDATES   

 
The Mayor of Greater Manchester provided a report which sought approval from the 
GMCA for investments to Maxilin Manufacturing Limited and LA Fashion Enterprise 
Limited (Lasula). The investments will be made from recycled funds.   
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the funding applications by Maxilin Manufacturing Limited (loan of £600k) 

and LA Fashion Enterprise Limited (Lasula) (investment of £1,000k) be given 
conditional approval and progress to due diligence. 
 

2. That delegated authority to the GMCA Treasurer and Monitoring Officer be 
approved to review the due diligence information and, subject to their 
satisfactory review and agreement of the due diligence information and the 
overall detailed commercial terms of the transactions, to sign off any 
outstanding conditions, issue final approvals and complete any necessary 
related documentation in respect of the loans/investments at 1. above. 

 
GMCA 120/18 GREATER MANCHESTER HOUSING INVESTMENT LOANS FUND 

– INVESTMENT APPROVAL RECOMMENDATIONS   
 
Paul Dennett, introduced a report which sought approval from the GMCA of the GM 
Housing Investment Loans Fund loan to Wiggett Homes Ltd and May Property Group 
Limited.  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

1. That the following loans from the GM Housing Investment Loans Fund be 
approved.  

 
 

 

Page 123



19 

 

BORROWER  SCHEME  DISTRICT  LOAN  

Wiggett 
Homes Ltd 

Hare Hill 
Mill, 
Littleborough 

Rochdale £2.215m 

Maya 
Property 
Group 
Limited 

Dale House, 
Hazel Grove 

Stockport £1.321m 

 
2. That delegated authority to the GMCA Treasurer acting in conjunction with the 

GMCA Monitoring Officer to prepare and effect the necessary legal agreements 
be approved. 

 
GMCA 121/18  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and 
public should be excluded from the meeting for the following items on business on 
the grounds that this involves the likely disclosure of exempt information, as set out 
in paragraph 3, Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 
GMCA 122/18 GREATER MANCHESTER INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK PROJECT 

UPDATES  
 
CLERK’S NOTE: This item was considered in support of the Part A Greater 
Manchester Investment Framework Project Updates (minute 119/18 refers). 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
GMCA 123/18 GREATER MANCHESTER HOUSING INVESTMENT LOANS 

APPLICATIONS  
 
CLERK’S NOTE: This item was considered in support of the Part A Greater 
Manchester Housing Investment Loans Applications (minute 120/18 refers). 

 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



20 

 

 
 

Page 125


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Attendance at Meetings
	8 Appointment of Chief Executive to role of Accountable Officer for HMR CCG
	9a The Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member for Finance
	9b The Cabinet Member for Corporate and Resources
	9c The Cabinet Member for Environment
	9d The Cabinet Member for Planning, Development and Housing
	9e The Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Business and Skills
	9f The Cabinet Member for Children's Services
	9g The Cabinet Member for Adult Care
	9h The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Community and Culture
	9i The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing
	9j The Chair of Heywood Township Committee
	9k The Chair of Middleton Township Committee
	9l The Chair of Pennines Township Committee
	9m The Chair of Rochdale Township Committee
	9n The Chair of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	9o The Chair of the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	9p The Chair of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	9q Report of a Representative to Transport for Greater Manchester
	10 Greater Manchester Combined Authority
	9_GMCA_mins_25_May_2018


